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RoadShow Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £FE#H &

The overall performance of RoadShow
Group ("RoadShow” or “the Group”)
in the financial year ended 31
December 2010 remained sfable with
very encouraging results across our
core operations in Hong Kong.

The new licence Agreement
guaranteeing exclusive media sales of
bus exteriors with The Kowloon Motor
Bus Company (1933) Limited ("KMB”),
signed in late 2009, has proved a
good investment and played a vital
role in enabling us to build revenue
and sustain growth.

THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF ROADSHOW IN

2010 REMAINED STABLE WITH VERY ENCOURAGING
RESULTS ACROSS OUR CORE OPERATIONS IN

HONG KONG.

E%EHLEA:EQ—EEEW ERRARERTE BEIRLER
G < ASFRRNELS

P.2



BABERARDA

—E-BFEH

RoadShow can now offer advertisers
a unique integrated platform
comprising BUSTV, IN-BUS and
BUS-BODY. Individually profitable,
their combined appeal has enabled
us fo maintain encouraging increases
in media revenues during the year just
ended. Our competitive edge in
outof-home media and advertising
has been further sharpened by

our synergistic co-management of
advertising space af bus shelters.

In April last year, the Group signed
an additional contractor’s agreement
and began further upgrading its
MMOB systems and broadcasting
fechnologies. Due fo be complefed
by February 2011, the enhancements
will be of significant benefit to our
future operations.

The coming months and years will

see RoadShow continue to expand its
customer base, market share and sales
revenues. We will deliver on these
objectives by enhancing the range of
value-added services we offer existing
clients and by selling the benefits of
our total platform to new advertisers.

In Mainland China, competition in the
felevision content provision industry
remains fierce. This has significantly
impacted the activities of our affiliate,
AdSociety Daye Advertising Company
Limited {"AdSociety Daye”). The
reduction of our equity interest in

the company to 32.7% and the
changes in its board of directors in
September 2009 meant that we no
longer exercised any real influence
on AdSociety Daye's current or

future operational sfrategies. As a
matter of prudence, our management
has accordingly re-assessed the
company's potential future cash flow
and adjusted the discount rates used
in calculating its estimated present
value in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 39 issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. An impairment
loss of HK$110.0 million has been
determined based on the likely

future decline of AdSociety Daye's
estimated revenues. Management will
continue to monitor the position of the
investment in AdSociety Daye.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £ E#H &

AS A RESULT OF OUR 2010
CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN
TECHNOLOGICAL UPGRADES,
THE GROUP REMAINS
WELLPLACED TO INCREASE
ADVERTISING REVENUES

ACROSS TS CORE BUSINESSES.

AEER T -TFAERMIR
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Results for the year

For the year ended 31 December
2010, the Group reported fotal
operating revenue of HK$356.4
million, representing an increase

of approximately 59.7% over the
previous year. Loss atfributable to
equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$61.6 million in 2010,
compared with a profit of HK$14.0
million in 2009. The loss affributable
fo equity shareholders is mainly due
fo the non-cash impairment loss of
the unlisted available-forsale equity
interest in AdSociety Daye amounting
to HK$110.0 million. However, the
operating profits of the Group, before
the effect of the impairment loss of
the unlisted availableforsale equity
interest in AdSociety Daye, was
approximately HK$6 1.1 million, an
increase of approximately 65.9% from
the previous year.

P.4



Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK4.85 cenfs
per share for the year ended 31
December 2010 (2009: HK1.41
cents per share). This represents a pay-
out ratio of T00% of the current year’s
profit excluding the impairment loss

of other non-current financial assets of

HK$110.0 million).

Prospects

Although it seems possible that Hong
Kong's economic growth may continue
fo accelerate lafer this year, global
markets remain far from stable. That
said, RoadShow remains cautiously
opfimistic that the advertising industry
will remain at a level similar to last
year. As a result of our 2010 capital
investment in fechnological upgrades,
the Group remains wellplaced to
increase advertising revenues across
its core businesses. Our solid financial
strength also means that we continue
fo be well-positioned to capitalise on
any new opportunities that may arise
fo increase our market share.

Appreciation

The Board of Directors and the senior
management of the Group are well
aware that the sustained success

of our business is heavily reliant on
experienced professionals. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to thank

all our staff for their dedication and
invaluable contribution to our business
during the year just ended. We are
confident of their continued support in
the coming months and years.

In closing, | would also like to extend
my very special thanks fo the Audit
Committee, chaired by Dr Eric Li Ka
Cheung, with Dr Carlye Wailing
Tsui, Ms Winnie Ng, Mr Yung Wing
Chung and Professor Stephen Cheung
Yan leung as members, for their
dedicated hard work throughout the
year.

| also sincerely appreciate the
valuable contributions of my fellow
directors, in partficular the Managing
Director, Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang, fo the
Group's steady progress.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman
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The year under review (or "FY2010")
saw the RoadShow Group confinue to
make steady progress on all business
fronts.

In Hong Kong, the Group made
encouraging advances in ifs mission
of building up an integrated out-
ofhome ("OOH") media platform
following FY2009's strategic securing
of an exclusive BUSBODY Media
Agency arrangement with KMB. As a
result, we have now further enhanced
our fotal infegration of BUSTV, BUS-
BODY and IN-BUS media. In addition
fo eamning and refaining the loyalty
of leading brands and advertisers,
this move has also served to cement
the strength of RoadShow's core
competencies.

FY2010 saw each operating division
maintain its emphasis on building the
media platforms which contributed
most substantially fo overall profit
improvement. The impressive end
result of their efforts was another year
of sfrong performance for our core
business.

THE GROUP MADE

2010 Annual Report

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT ES A KEH &

As a result, RoadShow's consolidated
net media revenue for FY2010 grew
by 65.6% to HK$325.2 million
compared to a figure of HK$196.4
million for FY2009. Apart from the
slight increase in other income, our
operating profit recorded a 65.9%
growth, reaching HK$6 1.1 million
for the year, before non-recurring
impairments were made (FY2009:
HK$36.8 million).

During FY2010, the fundamentals
underpinning China’s TV content
provision industry remained fragile.
This affected the Group's investment
in its joint venture in the PRC,
AdSociety Daye. In line with our
prudent practice and subsequent
fo the provision we made for
our programme library and
long-standing debts in
FY2009, we have now
made a further provision

for impairment loss of
HK$110.0 million.

ENCOURAGING ADVANCES IN
TS MISSION OF BUILDING UP AN

INTEGRATED OUTOFHOME MEDIA
PLATFORM.
AEEFREILRE PINEEB T A
THNBEER BRS ARERNE

R o




As the provision is non-Tecurring
and non-cash, the resultant figure is
a much fairer reflection of the true
value of our investment in this area.
As our Chairman has noted, we are
confinuing to monifor closely this
investment in order fo profect our
position.

Looking Forward

The fact that the outlook for the globoal
economy remains uncertain is also
affecting Hong Kong's media and
advertising industry. The absence

of an inferestboosting worldwide
event such as the Olympics or the
FIFA World Cup, and the arrival of
new competitors in the press and
electronics segments are other realities
the Group must face in FY2011. That
said, the strength RoadShow has built
across ifs core competencies ensures
we remain in a favourable position

fo overcome any challenges that lie

ahead.

To susfain our Group-wide success in
FY2011, we will continue to leverage
our unique new MMOB system. We
will also carry on integrating a tofal
media plafform that will ensure we
can accelerate expansion of our
market share.

In closing it must be pointed out that
the Group’s healthy progress is largely
due fo the wise guidance of our
Board and the professionalism and
dedication of our sfaff. | hereby place
on record my sincere appreciation

of everyone who has contributed to
RoadShow's sustained success.

Alex MO Tik Sang
Managing Director
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW Z 7 B E

BUS-TV

The RoadShow Group's BUSTV
(MMORB business specialises in

the broadcasting of tailormade
programmes and advertisements

on buses. Its other expertise spans
programme confent production and
sourcing, as well as the marketing and
selling of airtime.

The Group’s MMOB arm currently
operates some 20,000 LCD units,
which broadcast a wide variety of
programmes, news and infotainment
to an estimated 3,600,000-bus

passengers daily across Hong Kong.

P.8
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As of March 2011, approximately
4,800 buses from KMB, Citybus
and New World First Bus enriched
commuters’ daily journeys with
BUS-TV content.

In 2010, RoadShow began
enhancing its media platform by
installing new MMOB systems with
3G transmission capabilifies. These
systems are fast becoming a ‘must-
have' media buy for brand managers
who place a premium on easy
penetration of — and gross impact
across — a large daily audience base.

»
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OUTDOOR TV ="
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UNRIVALLED

Bus Interiors Advertising
IN-BUS

Having first appeared on buses in February 2009, Bus Inferiors
Advertising has proved to be a lucrafive new source of revenue for
the Group. In leveraging both interior decorations and BUSTV's
customised TV segments, this platform offers a genuinely "Win-Win'
situation for local advertisers looking for a creative showcase capable
of achieving synergy with other RoadShow platforms. Ultimately, no
other media buy makes it easier to satisfy brand managers’ desire to
‘maximise eyeball management while minimising eyeball conflict'.




BABERAERD A —2-REFH

ON-BUS IMPACT —
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CAICH

BUS-BODY

BUS-BODY

Launched in November 2009,
BUS-BODY was yet another pioneering
business initiative for the Group. The
commencement of 2009's new bus
exterior advertising arrangement with
KMB succeeded in further speeding
this platform’s business momentum and
market share. At present, the exteriors
of around 66% of all franchised

buses in Hong Kong carry RoadShow
advertisers' messages.

BrESRE
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW 7 [E &

BUS-SHELTERS

THE CITY'S

HIGH PROR

Operated with JCDecaux Cityscape Limited (formerly "JCDecaux Texon Limited”)
this arm of our business first began operations in 2001. In 2008, the Group
was awarded an exclusive media sales agency and management rights licence

in respect of selected bus shelfers across Hong Kong. The arangement will
remain in force until 31 July 2012.

In FY2010, BUS-SHELTERS octivities contributed not only both revenue and
profits, but also significantly enhanced our market share and status as probably
Hong Kong's premier specialist OOH advertising specialist.
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Integrated Marketing Services
The year under review saw a
phenomenal increase in demand

for this area of our service. Key
cusfomers include not only advertisers,
event management and production
specialisfs, but also creative
development and public relations
professionals, efc.

As a result, RoadShow continues

fo remain better positioned to meet
agencies and advertisers integrated
media and marketing services needs.

Unique Programming

RoadShow painstakingly creates and
sources highly relevant BUSTV confent
spanning the widest possible range of
culture, lifestyle, entertainment and news.
Uniquely creative, informative and
enferfaining, this coverage confinues o
command the inferest and awareness
of around 3,600,000 bus passengers

across Hong Kong every day.

In FY2010, the Group worked hard
fo stay ahead of its competitors by
providing a wide range of special
inferest programmes such as:

* Broadcasting timely news and
other valuable information
through onscreen news fickers on

3G-enabled Bus TVs.

* Keeping commuters abreast of
leading current affairs issues
through our popular ‘RoadShow
Forum’ magazine programme.
Highlighting Hong Kong's current
affairs and community issues, each
edition showcases fascinating
discussions of individual topics

P16
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by prominent guests with widely
differing viewpoints.

* Enriching Hongkongers artistic
and cultural inferests ahead of the
opening of the West Kowloon
Cultural District. Our subsequent
'RoadShow Stage” and ‘Dramatic
Criticism’ series provided
passengers with informative and
stimulating insights info both arts
and culture.

* Increasing local awareness of
the serious implications of global
warming. To this end, we are
confinuing fo work closely with
various government departments
and private bodies involved in
the promotion of environmental
profection. Our recent achievements
in this area include the production
and broadcasting of a special
programme called ‘Relief 16
Degrees’ Part Il. Our ultimate aim
was to encourage Hongkongers fo
be more environmentally proactive
in their daily lives. To date, ‘Relief
16 Degrees' Part Il has received
excellent feedback from both
the public and various influential
environmental bodies.

Throughout FY2011, RoadShow

will continue to enrich and diversify
its programme content. In doing so,
we will significantly increase both

our in-house production and our
collaborations with local and regional
content providers. We also plan to
boost our ratio of branded confent
and serve as promoters’ media partner
for concerts, movies and other high-
impact mainstream events.

A commitment to good corporate
citizenship

2010 was the eighth consecutive year
the Group has been honoured with

a coveted Caring Company Award
from the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services. In delivering on our promise
of giving back fo the local community,
we enthusiastically support many non-
profit organisations through the
pro-bono broadcasting of community
service messages and charity appeals
via BUSTV. In FY2010, the various
worthy causes whose appeals we aired
included Hong Kong Yogathan by
Hong Kong Hereditary Breast Cancer
Family Registry. We also donated free
air ime to 2010 Hong Kong Volunteer
Award Presentation Ceremony, HSBC
Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2010, Hong
Kong Dance Marathon 2010 by
Suicide Prevention Services and a life
Fama Tour by The Evangelical Lutheran
Church of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Lutheran Social Service. Our people
are also encouraged to participate in
leading charity and fund-raising events
such as the Community Chest’s ‘Dress
Special Day’. During FY2011, we

will continue fo try and be a better
corporafe citizen by supporting civic
education and producing informative
and educational programmes.

People

Our people’s ability to anticipate

and respond fo advertisers’ needs
has always given RoadShow much

of its competitive edge. In doing our
utmost to develop and refain falented
individuals, we are doing everything
possible to underline our leadership
status. During FY2010, we not only
recruited high caliber talents but also
enhanced the quality and efficiency
of our existing talent through staff
fraining. In the coming months and
years, we will continue to nurture a
culture that will ensure our people can
confidently overcome every challenge.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bt B R E

For The Year Ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=t+—HLEE

Unit
=y
Total operating revenue HK$ million
B A KB BEAET
(Loss)/profit before taxation HK$ million
Briial (Ei8) / &7 AEAET
(Loss)/profit atiributable to equity shareholders HK$ million
IR IEAE (B518) / & 7 BEBEET
Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and HK$ million
amortisation expenses ("EBITDA”) BEASTT
HRAE - BHIE - T ENEEE RN E
(FEBITDA])
Basic (loss)/eamings per share HK cents
FREXR(EE)/ &7 Al
® Arising from the Group's operations HK cents
ErBARELE R AL
* Arising from impairment loss of other HK cents
non-current financial assets A
ELXBHEMIERB R EERERE
Proposed final dividend per share HK cents
EEREFRRHRE Al
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million
IR (5 e s AR R BERETT

2010

2009
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B #5 [B] B&

The Group manages ifs business by the following geographical areas:

Hong Kong

AEEZA T HREIRHER

: Provision of media sales and management services 95 . %fiﬁﬁ%%ig%ﬁﬂﬁ% .
Mainland China : Provision of media advertising agency services and PR iﬂ’fiiﬁ;mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&%m
design and production of advertisements e
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
&8 B AR st

2009
HK$'000
BT

2009
HK$'000
BT

2009
HK$'000
BT

Revenue from external customers

Other revenue and other

net income

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit/(loss)

Unallocated other revenue and

other net income

Unallocated head office and

corporate expenses

REINBE PRI A 194,082 196,361
HAn A R

W e 558 8,553 10,855
2H|HIUA

SHRAWEA, (FE)

KFHEEMBA K

H s

AP HERAOPEER

pEET Y

(Loss)/profit before taxation

BREiAT(&1R), /BT

Income tax FRiSHE

(Loss)/profit for the year TEE(BE)BF
Attributable fo: FEAEIAT -

Equity shareholders of the Company ZXA BIA% R
Non-controlling inferest IR
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE(BR)BF




RoadShow Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW &1 7% [E1 8

Results

For the year ended 31 December
2010, the Group reported fofal
operating revenue of HK$356.4
million, representing an increase

of approximately 59.7% over the
previous year. Loss affributable to
equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$61.6 million in 2010,
compared with a profit of HK$14.0
million in 2009. The loss atiributable
fo equity shareholders is mainly due
fo the non-cash impairment loss of

the unlisted availableforsale equity
interest in AdSociety Daye Advertising
Company limited ("AdSociety Daye”)
amounting to HK$110.0 million.
However, the operating profits of

the Group, before the effect of

the impairment loss of the unlisted
available-forsale equity interest in
AdSociety Daye, was approximately
HK$61
approximately 65.9% from the

.1 million, an increase of

previous year. The Group confinues

fo mainfain a sfrong financial position
with bank deposits and cash of
HK$383.5 million as at 31 December
2010 (2009: HK$447 .9 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December
2010, the Group reporfed a fofal
operating revenue of HK$356.4
million, of which HK$325.2 million
was from the media sales services
and HK$31.2 million was from
other revenue and other net income.
Revenue from media sales services
generated from the Hong Kong and
the Mainland China operations
accounted for approximately 99.6%
and 0.4% of the Group's total turnover
respectively. Revenue generated from
media sales services of the Hong
Kong operations was HK$324.1
million in 2010 compared with

HK$194.1 million in 2009,
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representing a 67.0% increase
mainly contributed by the BUS-BODY
advertising business commenced

in November 2009, while that
generated from our Mainland China
operations was HK$ 1.2 million in
2010 compared with HK$2.3 million
in 2009.

Operating Expenses

The Group's operating expenses
increased by HK$109.0 million,
from HK$186.3 million to
HK$295.3 million, as a result of the
commencement of the operation of
the BUS-BODY advertising business in
November 2009.

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final
dividend of HK4.85 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December
2010 (2009: HK1.41 cents per
sharel. This represents a pay-out ratio
of 100% of the current year's profit
(excluding the impairment loss of
other non-current financial assets of

HK$110.0 million).

Cash Flow

In 2010, the cash generated from
the operations of the Group was
HK$63.8 million (2009: HK$2.9
million). Payment for capital
expenditure in 2010 amounted to
HK$1.3 million (2009: HK$11.0
million). The consolidated cash flow
statement of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010 is sef out
on pages 61 to 62 of this Annual
Report.

Liquidity and Financial
Resources

At 31 December 2010 and 2009,
the Group did not have any bank
borrowings. The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of bank
borrowings o the total share capifal
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and reserves of the Group was 0% at
31 December 2010 and 2009.

The Group had stand-by banking
facilities totalling HK$50.0 million at
31 December 2010 and 2009.

At 31 December 2010, the Group
had net current assets of HK$459.9
million (2009: HK$541.3 million)
and fotal assets of HK$806.8 million
(2009: HK$858.9 million).

Charge on Assets

At 31 December 2010, included in
other non-current financial assets, the
Group provided a loan to AdSociety
Daye through a designated deposit/
loan arrangement where a subsidiary
of the Company placed a pledged
deposit of RMB22,858,000 (2009:
RMB Nil) with a bank in the PRC
and the bank on lent the proceeds to
AdSociety Daye.

At 31 December 2010, bank
deposits of HK$4 1.2 million (2009:
HK$51.2 million) were pledged to
secure certain bank guarantees issued
by the subsidiaries of the Company
to fellow subsidiaries regarding their
due performance and payment under
cerfain licence agreements between
the subsidiaries of the Company and
the fellow subsidiaries.

Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group's monetary assefs

and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
US dollars and Renminbi. During the
year, there was no material fluctuation
in the exchange rates of Hong

Kong dollars and US dollars and of
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The Group did not engage in any
derivatives activities and did not
commit fo any financial instruments to
hedge its balance sheet exposure in

2010. At 31 December 2010 and
2009, the proceeds from the Globoal
Offering and the exercise of an over-
allotment option by the underwriters
on 18 July 2001, which had not
been utilised, were placed into bank
deposits.

Capital Expenditures and
Capital Commitments

Capifal expenditures incurred by the
Group during 2010 amounted to
HK$1.3 million (2009: HK$11.0
million). The breakdown of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in note
13 to the financial statfements on
page 95 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments outstanding
and not provided for in the financial
statements of the Group at 31
December 2010 amounted to
HK$141.2 million (2009: HK$173.0
million), which is mainly for the
upgrade of the existing MMOB
system for the BUS-TV business. The
commitments are to be financed by
bank borrowings and/or infernal
resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities af 31

December 2010 and 2009.

Accounting Standards and
Policies

The financial statements sef out

on pages 56 to 125 have been
prepared in accordance with the
applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Govemning the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and
Inferprefations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles
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generally accepted in Hong Kong continuing connected fransactions,
and the disclosure requirements of the  details of which are set out below.

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. (il The Group entered info the

. fransactions with the connected
Employees and Remuneration

Policies
At 31 December 2010, the Group
had 93 fullime employees in Hong

parties in 2009 as set out
below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected fransactions

which are subject to reporting,
Kong and 11 fulHime employees | Poring

in Mainland China. The Group has
adopted a share option scheme,

announcement and independent
shareholders” approval

requirements under Chapter 14A

defails of which are contained in the of the Listing Rules. The defails of

paragraph headed “Share Option the transactions listed below were

Scheme” as described on pages 49

disclosed in the circular of the
to 50 of this Annual Report.

Company dated 17 September

. 2009, and d at th
Connected Transactions 7 onewete approved A e
special general meeting by the

For the year ended 31 December

independent shareholders on @
2010, the Group had the following

October 2009.

) (BEEHEIDLZRE  BELRE
FHR R KB ECR BHRGI RO B HE 47 5 1 4R
ET

EERFMBER
R-Z—FF+-A=+—8  AEER
BEBOBARMIER - RPEARAIS 11
Z2WEE - AEED RGBSR
B HREEAAFREA9AEFES0EB
Rt E 8 -

BERXS
HE-Z—ZF+-B=+—HItFE "
AEEA TS EHER S - AHFEBEH
BT o

() AEER-_ZTNFHBMEATETT
M5 - RIEETRAE 14AE - %
ERXGWBUFERBER S - WHETH
W R RIEIRRAAENRE o T
RHGNHBERARBNR_BZNEFAN
AtERTIEBRARE YR _-F
ZAFETANBRERESIAE LB
STRRERHLIE

(1) The Kowloon Motor Bus Licence fee payable by RoadShow Media Limited 9,300 39,000
Company (1933) Limited ("RoadShow Media") (Note 2)to KMB in relation to
["KMB") (Nofe 1) the grant of a licence by KMB for soliciting advertising
NEE+(—Hh== business in respect of the inferior panels of the bus body
BERAR(AED of the KMB buses
(K1) RoadShow Media Limited ([ RoadShow Media )
(Ha2) i hBEEEENLEE TERASESAE
TEEEBNETERNEZHRNRTE
(2) KMB Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited (Nofe 3) 55,330 78,000
e to KMB in relation to the grant of a licence by KMB

KMB buses

EXNEFE

Notes:

1. KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited
(“TIH").
RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

3. Bus Power Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

for the exclusive right to market, display and maintain
advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies of the

Bus Power Limited (#/7# 3) 5t LB 5 B BAHE 8
BRREFEEREGINIEEMABRETERAN

BeE

1. hEASBEEBRERARAQB(EH
BBNBEZE2EHNBAR -

2. RoadShow Media AARRARMMEESE
EHTB AT -

3. Bus Power Limited A7 2 5 # K
2EMBRAT °



(i) The Group entfered into the

fransactions with the connected
parties in 2008 as set out

below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected fransactions
which are subject fo reporting,
announcement and independent

of the Listing Rules. The details of
the transactions listed below were
disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November
2008 and were approved at the
special general meeting by the
independent shareholders on 15

BABERARDA

(i)

shareholders” approval

December 2008.

requirements under Chapter 14A

—B-BEEH

REBR_TTN\FHREAZEALTHITT
MRS o BB ETHRAE14AE » %
EXGHKIFEBERS + WHEBTH
| A RESREBENBRE © T
RHNFHBERARRIRZZENF
T—AZ T N\BHERBHARE I
RZZZNF+-A+HARREES
R FEBIIRRALE

(3) KMB Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited 14,105 15,000
HE ("Bus Focus”) (Note 4] to KMB in connection with the
provision of media sales services for fransit vehicle
shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focus Limited ([Bus Focus |) (#7152 4) 5t AL E
BENRESRFRETRHERBHERBRANE
BT 2
(4) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited | Management fee payable by Bus Focus to JCDecaux 16,738 18,000
(formerly known as JCDecaux : Cityscape in connection with the provision of media
Texon Limited) ("JCDecaux sales services for transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB
Cityscape”) (Note 5) Bus Focus AN EHBHN R ESHIXE FIRHE
EEREERA A (ATE BHERENESREINHERE
EEsIERAA)
([EEEE])(Hzs5)
(5) JCDecaux Cityscape Shortfall of guarantee rental receivable by Bus Focus in 7,474 47,100
== R connection with the provision of media sales services for
fransit vehicle shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focus gt /LB HE A #) & iE B iR E =12 8 45
ERBOEKRIERSHN T ERE
Notes: MEE -
4. Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct 40%-owned 4. Bus Focus A4 RIfEE#A 60%

associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL"). IPL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux
Cityscape Hong Kong Limited (formerly known as JCDecaux Texon International Limited)

(")JCDecaux CHK").

5. JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK.

MM B AR - I H A Immense
Prestige Limited ([ IPL]) B 5
BA0% R E AT ° IPLA
JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong
Limited (RITBZE =B BEE AR AF)
([JCDecaux CHK ) K2 &M B AT °
=5 R A JCDecaux CHK B2 &t
BARF -

P.23
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(iii) The Group entered info the
fransaction with the connected
party in 2007 as set out below.
The transaction constitutes a
continuing connected fransaction
which is subject fo reporting,
announcement and independent
shareholders” approval
requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The defails of
the fransaction listed below were
disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 21 November
2007 and were approved af the
special general meeting by the

2010 Annual Report

independent shareholders on 10
December 2007. The details of
the annual caps in respect of the
licence fee and service charges
payable by RoadShow Media
under the following fransaction
for the year ended 31 December
2010 and the years ending 31
December 2011 and 2012 were
disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 17 September
2009 and were approved at the
special general meeting by the
independent shareholders on @

October 2009.

(i) REER ST FHEEATETT
WA 5 o RIE EMHRAIE 14AE - ZR
SEBRIFERER S - WHETHR -
D RBIRFIERRE © TR S
WHBERARAR_ETLE+—A
“+—BHENBRAEE  TRZZ
ZLFE+ZATERBRESRIRS &
BB HE A - RoadShow Media it T
FBE—T—TF+_A=+—HILF
ERBE-Z——FR-ZFE—_F+=
A=+—BIEFEAEINNETERR
BENFELROFBEERARARZ
ZTAFNA LB FIEO R KA
B WRZZZNF+ANBRERERRF
PIKE B AR AL o

[6) KMB

Independent Non-Executive Directors
have reviewed and confirmed that the
confinuing connecfed fransactions as
set out in (i), (i) and |(iii) above, which
were entered info by the Group, are:

* in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

® on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favourable than

Licence fee and service charges payable by RoadShow
FE Media to KMB in connection with the granting of
an exclusive licence to conduct BUS-TV Advertising
on KMB's transit vehicles fitted with the MMOB
broadcasting system

RoadShow Media L ER BH FrHEERAERBZ K
BEEAGANNEREEH LETELTEREEERK
ANE X T E RRESE

terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third
parties; and

in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

27,776 42,000

B IEITE SR LAG) -~ (i) R (i)

EASEFTEITHFERERS - WHER

ERHE

o NAKEBERAE R —WEKBREPIIL

o B WEEKRUIRTBERRETEY
FEoEIABUE-ERHECGRERBR
E ) BEFETSL + &

o HHMBERENS  BERBATEE
REGARRBIRRNBEFIZ -



In addition, on the basis of procedures

performed, the independent auditors

of the Company (the “External
Auditors”) advised that in respect of

the continuing connected fransactions

as set out in (i), (i) and (iii) above:

nothing has come fo the External
Auditors’ attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed
confinuing connected fransactions
have not been approved by the
Board:

nothing has come fo the External
Auditors’ attention that causes them
to believe that the fransactions were
not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

with respect fo the aggregate
amount of the confinuing connected
fransactions for the year ended

31 December 2010, nothing has
come to their affention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected fransactions
have exceeded the respective
maximum aggregate annual

value (cap) disclosed in previous
announcements made by the
Company in respect of each of the
continuing connected fransactions.

Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group has ufilised
approximately HK$397.9 million for
the development of, and the purchase
of equipment for use in, the BUS-

TV business and for the acquisition

of complementary businesses in
Mainland China. The balance of the
proceeds, which has not been utilised,
has been deposited with licensed
banks in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed
strong emphasis on mainfaining

high standards of corporate
governance and believes good
corporate governance provides

a solid and sound framework to
assist the Directors in fulfilling their
duties and responsibilities fo the
Group. The Group's standards of
corporate governance ensure that the
Group's corporate decision-making
process, internal controls, disclosure
of information and communication
with shareholders is conducted in
accordance with sound management
practices and in full compliance

with the regulatory standards. The
Corporate Governance Report of

the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 is sef out on pages
33 to 44 of this Annual Report.

BRABERERALS —E-2EFR
LSS - RIBEETHORF - ARFRET

TRERD ([ INEEAZBAM B 3 Ll (i)
(i) B EEER S RERE

o SNEREEL T ABERERFHER
BRENRHERNEZ IV REESSE
BEH

o SMNERZEE I N AFBEAEEFHRER
SEMABEANHLIFREREZER
SEOERHEMILNER

o BEBE_TTFFT_A=+—HLF
ERERERXZNELRENS  BEX
PHBEAERSFHECRENSER
B SEBARNBNBERSAEEN
ERERERINRREFASHR(L
RIMEE -

(i) Kz

FRBRIEAR
BREMNBREBBMERIMER AR LT
AR AEEABERETEREKLEE
R Z RS - A RRER B RERE
EEEMmB) B 44 397,900,000 JT © &
REYAMATERBRED FARBIIEE
TIEBTE

EER
AEEZFR-EBRNRFEKRTOHLE
A WARERENEERERELREM
BE2MER  KMEDHESERAEEET
BENEE AEENERE QKT
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEABEHN

Directors E 5=

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
FREZEBEETAFHL

Aged 67, Dr Chan has been the
Chairman of the Company since 15
January 2001. He is a Non-executive
Director of Transport Infernational
Holdings Limited (“TIH"). He previously
served as Managing Director of TIH and
as Managing Director and later Senior
Executive Director of The Kowloon
Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited
("KMB") and long Win Bus Company
Limited. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank

YUNG Wing Chung
BXE

Aged 64. Mr Yung has been a Director
of the Company since 20 November
2008. He is a Corporate Advisor of Sun
Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also
serves as a Non-Executive Director of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Limited, a Non-Executive Director and

Chairman
£

GBS, JP DBA [Hon), DSocSc [Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKloD

Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited
and Swire Properties Limited. Dr Chan
held many positions in the Hong Kong
Civil Service from 1964 to 1978 and
from 1980 to 1993, the key ones of
which included Private Secrefary fo the
Governor, Deputy Secretary (General
Duties), Director of Information Services,
Deputy Chief Secretary, Secretary for
Trade and Industry and Secretary for
Education and Manpower. Dr Chan
also served as Executive Director and
General Manager of Sun Hung Kai
Finance Company Limited from 1978 to
1980. He was Chairman of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club from 2006 to 2010.
Dr Chan is Chairman of the Court of the
Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and a Vice Patron of the
Community Chest.

Deputy Chairman

BlE R

an Alternate Director fo Mr Raymond
Kwok Ping Luen of Wing Tai Properties
Limited, Director of YATA Limited,

Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre
Limited, River Trade Terminal Co. ltd.,
Hung Kai Finance Company Limited
and Airport Freight Forwarding Centre
Company Llimited, and as an Alternate
Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping
Luen of Transport Infernational Holdings
Limited. Prior fo his joining Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited in 1995, Mr Yung
had many vears of working experience
with a U.S. Bank in various managerial
positions in Hong Kong and the United
States.

ANt RETra 2T —5—A+A
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BRAB(THB)ENTES - B
FEERER  UEEAEEL (A==
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—NAAREFE-AENER-ANTEE
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ZEEBERIBEMBAR R RNITE
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HEAER-
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Winnie NG
R

Aged 47. Ms Ng is the Founder of the
Company and has been Director since
its inception. She is also a Director of
Transport International Holdings Limited,
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933 Limited, and Long Win Bus
Company Limited. Ms Ng has received
numerous awards and recognition.

In 2010, she was named a VWWoman

of Excellence and was also selected

as one of 60 Meritorious Chinese
Entrepreneurs with Achievement and
National Contribution. In previous years,
she won the Yazhou Zhoukan Young
Chinese Entrepreneur Award, was
named one of China’s 100 Outstanding

Alex MO Tik Sang
EEE

Founder and Deputy Chairman
YN
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, C/

Women Entrepreneurs, was Mason
Fellow of Harvard University, and was
the Caring Heart Award recipient. She
founded and spearheaded listing of this
multi-media company, which business
model has been adopted by many
companies in HK, China and over the
world.

Active in public service, she is Director
of Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre,
Council Member of The Better Hong
Kong Foundation, Member of Hospital
Authority, Member of Hong Kong
Tourism Board, Member of Employees
Retraining Board, Director of Agency
for Volunteer Service, Member of Public
Relations Committee of The Community
Chest, and is also involved with a
number of other public and community

bodies.

Ms Ng holds an MBA degree from
the University of Chicago and an MPA

degree from Harvard University.

Aged 45. Mr Mo has been a Director
of the Company since 15 April 2008.
With more than twenty years of extensive
experience in advertising, markefing

and the media field, Mr Mo possesses
infegrated experience in multiple
disciplines of the communications indusfry
having held management responsibilities
in the past fifleen years. Prior fo joining
the Group, Mr Mo held a senior position
in a leading media group for Greater

China.

BRABERERA

—E-BEEH

MILT, MHKloD
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Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI
HREREI AT

Aged 63. Dr Tsui has been a Director
of the Company since 1 April 2001. A
graduate of the University of Hong Kong,
Dr Tsui obtained her Doctorate degree
in Professional Studies from Middlesex
University, UK. She is the Chief Executive
Officer of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. She is also Fellow of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors and

The British Computer Society, Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong Association
for Computer Education and Chartered
Information Technology Professional.

Dr Tsui is the holder of Professional

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
TRE[BT AT

Aged 57. Dr Li has been a Director

of the Company since 16 September
2004. He is the Senior Partner of i,
Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and an
Independent Non-executive Director of
Transport International Holdings Limited,
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933 Limited, Long Win Bus Company

P.28

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUIFATES

BBS, MBE, JP. DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FBCS, CITE. FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD

Diploma on Corporate Governance
and Directorship. A Justice of the Peace,
Dr Tsui is a Member of the Board of
Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance)
and Deputy Chairman of Hong Kong
Internet Registration Corporation
Limited. She was formerly a VWan Chai
District Councillor, a Councillor of
Urban Council and Provisional Urban
Council and a member of Broadcasting
Authority. She is Founding Chairman of
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. She is
an Independent Non-Executive Director
of AXA Financial Services Trustees
Limited and was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of FU JI Food and
Catering Services Holdings Limited
(1175). She was selected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons in Hong
Kong 1981 and awarded T Achiever
of the Year 1992, Member of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire in
1997, Bronze Bauhinia Star 2003 and
the Ken Goulding Award for the most
outstanding professional doctorate of

Middlesex University 2007

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIHTES

AtT=m - HRETE-TT—FHA—H
BARARES - MEENREBRE I
EREABTEEIASERXE AR - it
AEBESBENITHEAH - NEEE
BEE: B51IRMEe  FEEEEe
REEEMB2ENEREE - BB
BESNBRERLTRETEMBEEEA
T o BREIRBIEEEAREZTEEX

Bl RBLEARTFHL BB LEFE

BEeREURESEHAFMEREARA
AIEIER - METEEFERZE - ATTEK
RRERETRE#EREESHEERNK
8 - th AR BPLEETER - 1R

AEEEMREETER DB IFHNIT
B SEARTREMBRBERERAR
(1175) KB IEMITES - i — N\ —
FRERABESTABLEFZ— IR

— NN ZFERGELENB RS R
—NMNEEEBRRTREEESE  R-F
ToFERREKAES  WERBESRA
BEE-TTHFRELIEREH LR

GBS, OBE, JP LD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT, FCA, FCFPA (Aust.), FCIS, FHKloD

Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited,
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Llimited, VWong's International (Holdings)
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China
Resources Enterprise, Limited and Bank
of Communications Co., lid.. Dr Li was
an Independent Non-executive Director
of Meadville Holdings Limited

(o company listed on the Stock
Exchange until its withdrawal of its listing
status on 19 April 2010). Dr li is a
member of the 1 1th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong
from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman

of ifs Public Accounts Committee from
1995 1o 2004. He is also a past
president of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Professor Stephen

CHEUNG Yan Leung
RCEBBAFEMHL

Aged 51. Professor Cheung has been

a Direcfor of the Company since 19
January 2009. He is the Dean of the
School of Business and a Professor (Chair)
of Finance, af the Hong Kong Bapist
University. He also holds Advisory and
Adjunct Professorships af Fudan University
and Shanghai Jiao Tong University
respectively. He obtained a BSc from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, PhD

in Statistics from Universite de Paris VI,
and PhD in Finance from the University of
Strathclyde.

Professor Cheung has extensive
consulfancy experience in the Hong
Kong financial sector. He has served
as a project coordinator for the
Consumer Council in its examination
of the Hong Kong Banking sector.
He was Chairman of Core Group
on Corporate Governance, Pacific
Economic Cooperation Council and

MAK Chun Keung
% R 0@

Independent Non-Executive Director
B ERITTES

HITES
BBS, JP, FHKloD

was responsible for drafting the PECC's
guidelines on good corporate governance
practice for Asia-Pacific economies. He
has provided consultancy services to

the Asian Development Bank, United
Nations ESCAP. Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, Financial
Services Bureau, Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK]

ltd. He was also a parttime member of
advisory board of the Central Policy Unit
of the HKSAR Government.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the
Advisory Committee of the Enhancing
Self-Reliance Through District Partnership
Programme of the Home Affairs
Department, Consultation Panel of the
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.
He is also Chairman of the Supervisory
Committee of the Asian Bond Fund
[ABF] Hong Kong Bond Index Fund of
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

He serves on the Operations Review
Committee of Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC), Commission
on Strategic Development, Steering
Committee of Review of Urban Renewal
Strategy, and Independent Police
Complaints Council (IPCC). He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2009, and was appointed as Justice

of the Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR

Government.

Director

5%

Aged 70. Mr Mak has been a Director
of the Company since 23 May 2001.
He joined The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited ["KMB") in
1994, appointed Commercial Director
in 2001 and retired in February 2006.
He was Director of KMB's first two joint
ventures to operate public bus services
in People’s Republic of China. Mr Mak
has over twenty years of experience in
infernational banking and finance, and
has held senior executive positions in
foreign and local banking institutions
throughout his career.
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John Anthony MILLER

HER

-

-

e

Aged 60. Mr Miller has been a
Director of the Company since 20
March 2008. Mr Miller retired from
the Civil Service in February 2007 as
Permanent Representative of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of
China to the World Trade Organization
in Geneva. Key positions held over a
career spanning 35 years prior fo Mr
Miller’s retirement include Permanent
Secretary for Financial Services and

Edmond HO Tat Man
] 32 XX

Aged 49. Mr Ho has been a Director of
the Company since 13 October 2008.
Mr Ho has been a Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited (“TIH") and
of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited ("KMB") and Long Win
Bus Company Limited ("LVWB"), both
wholly-owned subsidiaries of TIH, since

1 January 2001. Mr Ho joined KMB in
September 1998 and served as Finance
and Administration Director from January

P.30

Director

& 5

SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKIoL

the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of
Housing and Chief Executive of the
Housing Authority 1996-2002, Director-
General of Trade 1993-1996, Director
of Marine 1991-1993, Information
Coordinator in the Chief Secrefary’s
Office 1989-1991 and Private
Secretary to the Governor 1979-1982.
Mr Miller is a non-executive director

of Transport Infernational Holdings
Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933] Limited and SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
and is chairman of Hong Kong Business
Aviation Centre Limited, a partly-owned
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited. Mr Miller holds an MPA degree
from Harvard University and a BA
degree from Llondon University.

Director

:,4

MA(Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

1999 to April 2003. He was promoted
fo Deputy Managing Director of TIH,
KMB and LVWWB with effect from 10
January 2002. He has been appointed
Managing Director of KMB and [VWB
since 1 January 2007 and Managing
Director of TIH with effect from 8 April
2008. Positions previously held by

him included Investment Director of @
merchant bank and executive director
of a number of transport infrastructure
management and investment companies
in Hong Kong and on the Mainland

of China. Mr Ho was formerly also a
director of four Sinoforeign joint venture
companies of an inferational leading
soft drink brand. Mr Ho holds a Master's
degree in engineering from Cambridge
University and an MBA degree from The
University of Hong Kong.
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BABERAERADA

—B-BEEH

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman 15 January 2001
BRAEZE K Pt T —EZ—%—H+hH
GBS, IP

Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman 15 January 2001
thRatgx L RS —ET¥-F—HA+AA
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman 20 November 2008

Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI
(P R NS il

BBS, MBE, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIUFNITES

1 April 2001
—EE-—FITHA—H

Dr Eric Ll Ka Cheung

Independent Non-Executive Director

16 September 2004

FRE[ TR FEMLT BN TES —EEMFENA+RE
CBS, OBE, P
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung  Independent Non-Executive Director 19 January 2009

RERBIRAFEL

BIUIFAITES

—FEAE—A+AA

BBS, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Direcfor 15 April 2008
EHEERE ExprR “EE/\FWHA+EHEA
Mr MAK Chun Keung Non-Executive Director 23 May 2001

BiR@ AL

FRITES

—EE—FRA-T=H

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HBRBEE
SBS, OBE

Non-Executive Director

FHMTES

20 March 2008
—TENF=A=1+H

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
Al X &

Non-Executive Director

FRTES

13 October 2008
—EZENFE+A+=H
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Senior Management SREEA S

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director April 2008

FEHELLE EFRmrR —EZN\FHEA
Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing Chief Programme Officer September 2008
B L £ B R B ER —ZEZNFNA

Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung
Xt

Finance & Administration Director and
Company Secretary
B RITBABEE TR AR E

February 2007
—EFTEHF_A

Mr Simon SIU Kar Chun
BRIRGTAE

General Manager, Marketing & Sales (Greater China)
MR EFREIB (KRR EMR)

October 2010
—E-ZTF+HA

Ms Ada LO Ching
EFLL

Operations & Planning Director
BERREIBE

October 2000
—ETEF+H
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RoadShow’s Corporate
Governance Framework

The Company and ifs subsidiaries
(fogether referred to as the “Group”)
have placed sfrong emphasis on
maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and believe that
good corporate governance provides
a solid and sound framework fo assist
the Board of Directors (the “Board”) in
fulfilling its duties and responsibilities
fo the Group and its shareholders.

In November 2004, The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) issued the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices
and Corporate Governance Report
[the “Code"), which took effect for
accounting periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2005. The Code
sefs out principles of good corporate
governance and two levels of
recommendations, namely:

* Code Provisions (listed companies
are expected to comply with
all these provisions or to give
considered reasons for any
deviation); and

e Recommended Best Practices (listed
companies are encouraged fo
comply with these recommendations
or to give reasons for any
deviation).

On 14 March 2005, the Board
established the "RoadShow Code

on Corporate Governance” (the
"RoadShow Code”) and the Company
has implemented the RoadShow
Code since then. On 8 March 2006,
the Board approved and adopted

a number of new sections of the
RoadShow Code which, among other
things, rectified the two deviations
from the code provisions in the Code
of Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules”)
as reported in the Annual Report

for the year ended 31 December
2005. The RoadShow Code was
further updated in March 2009 in
accordance with the amendments fo
the Listing Rules which had become
effective from 1 January 2009.

Compliance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices
The Company was in compliance
with all applicable code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31
December 2010.

The Board of Directors

The Board is composed of ten
Directors as at 31 December 2010,
three of whom are Independent Non-
Executive Directors ("INEDs"). These
INEDs bring a wide range of business
and financial experience to the Board,
which contributes to the effective
direction of the Group.
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In order to oversee various aspects of the Company'’s affairs, the Board has

appointed various Board Committees. The maijority of the members of the Board
Committees are either INEDs or Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”). Each of
the committees has ifs specific terms of reference. The Company’s boardroom

framework is outlined below:

REBARREHENER  BEEECE
ETRAMNEELZEE -EEZBEKET
ERBIFATESHIFRTEE ([
TEF)])  XZBeRBHENTERESR

c ARFWEFERBHALT

INEDs . ANEDs . 7 MD
BEYIFENTES BHFWTES BERRKIE
NEDs INEDs INEDs INEDs
BIRWTES BENIFWITES BENFRITES EEIFTES
MD NEDs NED NED
BEREKE BIMTES BIFMTES BIMTES

Details of all Directors, including the
Chairman, Managing Direcfor ("MD",
Executive Director, NEDs and INEDs
are sef out on pages 26 to 30 of

this Annual Report. The relationships
(including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships)
among members of the Board are also
disclosed. There is no such relationship
between the Chairman and the MD.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing
and supervising its affairs in a
responsible and effective manner.

Each director has a duty fo act in
good faith in the best interests of the
Company.

The types of decisions that are taken
by the Board include those relafing fo:

* the sirategic plans and objectives
of the Company;

* the moniforing and controlling of
the Group's operating and financial
performance;

* overseeing the management of
relationships with stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers,
Covernment, suppliers, employees
and the community; and

* the assessment and management of
risk to which the Group is exposed.
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The Direcfors are responsible for the
preparation of the Group’s financial
statements for each financial year or
period that give a frue and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for
that year or period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010, the Directors
have:

* selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them
consistently;

* made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable; and

* prepared the financial statements
on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the Group's
financial statements. This responsibility
extends to annual and inferim reports,
"price-sensitive” announcements and
other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, as well as
reports to regulators and information
required to be disclosed pursuant

fo statutory requirements. The
responsibility of the External Auditors
for the audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2010 is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages
54 to 55 of this Annual Report.

During the year ended 31 December
2010, the Board at all times

complied with the requirements

of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs
and also the requirement that one

of these INEDs should possess
appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to the requirement of the
Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation from
each INED of his or her independence
from the Company. The Company
considers all of the INEDs to be
independent.

Board Meeting

The Board met regularly throughout
the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational
and financial performance of

the Group. All Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s
businesses, including relevant rules
and regulafions. Writlen procedures
are also in place for Directors fo seek
independent professional advice in
performing their Directors’ duties af
the Company’s expense. No request
was made by any Director for such
independent professional advice

in 2010. Six Board meefings were
held during 2010 and the average
affendance rate of Directors was 97%
(2009: 88%). The attendance record
of the Directors in 2010 is set out in

the following table.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2010

BREER-_Z-SHFETNEZSEBNLERR

Meetings Attended/Held
g BIT8%

Percentage

Bk

Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI

, %
R o/ .
Dr Eric Ll Ka Cheung N
FRIET o/ 8o
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

.| OO
B B i 6/6 00%

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)

BRI+ () o 100%
Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman i
thEE L+ (AER) 6/6 100%
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman) 5
BB (BIEE) o 100%
Mr Anfhony NG (with Ms Winnie NG as alternate)
(resigned as Director on 12 May 2010) o
2/2 100%
FACK A (BRI AL AL TES) /
(R=Z—Z=FRA+-HEEESE—H)
Mr MAK Chun Keung
100%
EiRea 4 6/6 00%
Mr John Anthony MILLER
A ] oo
HE 6/6 00%
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man N
Al Sk 6/6 100%
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang 5
el 6/6 100%
Board Committees Executive Committee EEZEw
The Board has appointed an Executive The Executive Committee was EZeCZATHRZES  BHXRZEE
Committee, Audit Committee, established on 12 September 2001. GHMZEEBeRIREZEBREEALARH
Remuneration Committee and The Committee is composed of four HH L -
NO.m]nQﬂon Com](m:fee to overs?e Directors, three of whom are NEDs. SHESE
VO“(_DUS aspects of the Company's The Executive Committee meets AREEER-—ZE=—FAB+—HK
affairs. regularly throughout the year and o EESehNAESER  HTF=AL
on an ad hoc basis if necessary to EMITEE -

review business operations, financial
operations and ad hoc projects of the
Group. These projects include major
acquisitions, investments and their
funding requirements.
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During 2010, the Executive Committee held five meetings. The attendance R-B—FF (IRZEERITTHAE
record of the members of the Executive Committee in 2010 is summarised # o TRERERBR-F-FFOME
below: SER AT
Attendance of individual members at Executive Committee meetings in 2010
ERER-E-SFETNTHRZEESTENLHERR
Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
A, Bi7E BAk
Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman X
E SR (ER) 5/5 100%
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman .
PRABE L (BIER) 5/5 100%
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang .
A A 5/5 100%
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man .
X seE 5/5 100%
Audit Committee fo sirengthen the system of internal FRESE
The Audit Committee was established ~ control, risk management and ERZEEER-TT-FMA+—HK
1 April 2001. The Committee compliance with applicable laws and 37 - ZE @R ALIFRITERER - Heh
is composed of five NEDs, three of regulations. SARBUIFRTER - EFHLRTFE
ZEERENERLEBRERZESS

whom are INEDs. The MD is required
fo aftend each Audit Committee
meefing as requested by the members
of the Commitiee. After each meeting,
the Audit Committee reports to the
Board on significant issues. As af

the date of this Annual Report, the
members of the Audit Committee are
Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung (chairman), Dr
Carlye Wailing Tsui, Ms Winnie Ng,
Mr Yung Wing Chung and Professor
Stephen Cheung Yan leung.

The Audit Committee is o assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
relating fo accounting and reporting
pracfices, o improve the credibility
and obijectivity of the Company’s
financial and other reports, and

During 2010, the Audit Committee
held three meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following
documents and matters in the
meetings:

¢ the Company’s Report of the
Directors, Independent Auditor's
Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December
2009 and 2009 Annual Report,
with a recommendation fo the
Board for approval;

* the Company’s Inferim Financial
Report for the six months ended
30 June 2010 and Interim Report
2010, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

v
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the Company’s accounting policies
and ifs compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of
Hong Kong;

the audit plan of the External
Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2010, including the
extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the auditors;

the results of the external audits;

the fees payable to the External
Audifors of the interim review for
the six months ended 30 June
2010 and of the audit for the year
ended 31 December 2010, and
terms of engagement of the External
Auditors for approval by the Board;

the results of the 2009 and
2010 internal audits performed
by an oufsourced independent

professional firm (the “Internal
Auditors”);

the proposed internal audit plan for
financial years 2010 to 2012 of

2010 Annual Report
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extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the Internal

Auditors;

¢ the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group,
including (a) BUSTV Advertising
business - (i) Sales and Marketing;
(ii) Controls over the MMOB System
Enhancement Project and i)
Billing, Credit Controls and Receipt
Handling; (b) BUSBODY and IN-
BUS Advertising businesses - [i)
Sales and Marketing; (i) Operation
and Contract Compliance; and (i)
Billing, Credit Controls and Receipt
Handling; and (c) Follow up review
of 2009 Findings performed by the
Internal Auditors; and

¢ the compliance by the Company
with all applicable laws,
regulations, standards and best
pracfice guidelines.

The attendance record of the members
of the Audit Committee in 2010 is
summarised below:

the Internal Auditors including the
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Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2010
ERER-E-SFETNERZEEERNLERR

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage

g, BiTas Epigs
Dr Eric Ll Ka Cheung (chairman) ]
FREBL(ER) 3/3 100%
Dr Carlye Wailing TSUI 9
BRERELT 2/3 67%
Ms Winnie NG o
fhiatct 3/3 100%
Mr YUNG Wing Chung o
BB 33 100%
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung 3/3 1002
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the
Remuneration Committee on 23 March
2004 comprising three NEDs, two of
whom are INEDs. As at the date of
this Annual Report, the members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr Yung
Wing Chung (chairman), Dr Carlye
Wailing Tsui and Professor Stephen
Cheung Yan leung.

The Remuneration Committee is
infended to define and articulate @
compensation philosophy or strategy
consistent with the strategic objectives
of the Company. To achieve this
objective, the Remuneration Commitiee
formulates policies on and reviews

the remuneration of the Company’s
Directors and senior management.

The principal elements of the
Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

* no individual should determine his
or her own remuneration package;

* remuneration packages should
be on a par with companies with
whom the Company competes for
human resources;

¢ the Company should aim at
designing remuneration packages
that attract and retain executives

successfully and motivate executives
fo pursue appropriate growth
strategies whilst it should avoid
paying an excessive amount for
such purposes;

* remuneration packages should
reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as
well as the complexity of work; and

* remuneration packages should be
structured in such a way that they
provide incentives fo Directors and
senior management fo improve their
individual performance.

In 2010, the Remuneration Committee:

* reviewed the remuneration
package of Directors and made
recommendations to the Board:

* reviewed and assessed criferia
for awarding performance related
bonuses to Directors, having regard
to the Group's business objectives
and fargets; and

* reviewed the principal elements
of the remuneration packages of
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held
one meeting in 2010. The attendance
record of the members of the
Remuneration Committee in 2010 is
summarised below:
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needed fo run the Group —TEMHE
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Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in 2010
ERER-E-SFETNFMZESSZIRNLERR
Meeting Attended/Held Percentage
FrifE,BiTas Bk
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (chairman) .
RABIE(ER) 1/1 100%
Dr Carlye Wailing TSUI o
BREREL 1/ 100%
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
1/1 100%
1= R / o0
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the
Nomination Committee on 8 March
2006 comprising three NEDs, two of
whom are INEDs. As at the date of
this Annual Report, the members of the

Nomination Committee are Mr Yung
Wing Chung [chairman), Dr Carlye
Wailing Tsui and Professor Stephen
Cheung Yan leung.

The principal functions of the
Nomination Committee include:

* reviewing the structure, size and
composition {including the skills,
knowledge and experience| of
the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations fo the
Board regarding any proposed
changes;

* identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board

members, and selecting or making

recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for Direcforships;

making recommendations fo the
Board on relevant matters relafing
fo the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Direcfors,
in particular the Chairman and the

MD.
2010, the Nomination Committee:

reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and
made recommendations to the
Board;

reviewed the independence of
INEDs: and

made recommendations fo the
Board about the refirement and
re-appointment of Directors by
rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one

meeting in 2010. The attendance

record of the members of the

Nomination Committee in 2010 is

summarised below:
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* assessing the independence of REBLRIT
INEDs; and
Attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in 2010
ERER-E-ZFETHREZESTENLERR
Meeting Attended/Held Percentage
g BiTes BEOL
Mr YUNG \/\/mg Chung (chairman 5
BAKBREER 1/ 100%
Dr Carlye Wailing TSUI 9
BREREL 1/ 100%
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung v 6o

RICREUR
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Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal
procedures for the appointment of
new Directors. Appointments are

first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then
submitted to the Board for decision
with reference fo criteria that include
professional knowledge and industrial
experience, personal ethics, infegrity
and personal skills, and the time
commitments of the candidates.
Thereafter, all Directors are subject to
reelection by the shareholders at the
general meetings in their first year of
appoiniment.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of
not more than three years.

Chairman and Managing Director
In order to reinforce independence,
accountability and responsibility,

the posts of the Chairman and the
MD are held separately by Dr John
Chan Cho Chak and Mr Alex Mo
Tik Sang respectively. The Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is functioning properly with
good corporate governance practices
and procedures, whilst the MD is
responsible for managing the Group's
businesses in a manner consistent
with the Group's standards and in
accordance with specific plans,
instructions or directions of the Board.

Directors’ Securities Transactions
The Company required all ifs Directors
to comply with the Model Code as
sef out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Following specific enquiry

by the Company, all Direcfors have
confirmed that they fully complied

with the required standard sef out in
the Model Code throughout the year
2010.

The Company’s Code on Securities
Transactions is prepared on ferms
no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Interests in
Shares

Details of Direcfors' interests in the
shares of the Company are set out in
the Report of the Directors section on
pages 48 fo 49 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for
maintaining an adequate system of
infernal controls in RoadShow and
reviewing its effectiveness through

the Audit Committee. The Board and
the Audit Committee have decided

fo oufsource the review of the infernal
controls function to the Infernal Auditors
and the Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of
such system of infernal controls as well
as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls
and risk management procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the infernal control
functions by the Infernal Auditors was
based on the "COSQO" framework (the
infernal control framework developed
by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway
Commission).

The expectations of the Company
regarding duty and integrity are
clearly stated in the Company’s Code
of Conduct and Staff Handbook, as
well as the policies and procedures
manuals, which set out the rules

and polices, for the Directors and
employees fo follow. These cover
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all aspects of administrative and
operational activities, including
relationships with customers, suppliers,
competitors and fellow staff. The
infernal control system covers every
activity and transaction of the Group
in RoadShow. The system is based

on clear stfewardship responsibilities,
authorities and accountability. Our
employees are an imporfant part of
our infernal systfem and the Group
expects them to confribufe to that
system. In addition o sefting our
guidelines, principles and values, the
Croup recognises that an environment
where employees feel free to bring
problems to management is also
necessary to make our internal control
system successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and
employees, assisted by the Internal
Auditors with particular professional
experience in assessing risks and
confrol procedures, have evaluated
the Company’s control environment,
conducted risk assessments of
businesses and processes, and
documented those processes that are
crifical to the Group's performance.

Qudlified personnel throughout the
Group maintain and monitor the
system of controls on an ongoing
basis and the MD and Finance &
Administration Director have fo report
any significant changes, deficiencies
and material weaknesses in, and
fraud related to, internal controls to
the Audit Committee and the Internal
Auditors.

P.42

Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit
plan designed by the Internal Auditors
and agreed by the Audit Committee,
the Internal Auditors update and
review the Company’s infernal control
system every year in such a way

that the update and review of all the
major components of the infernal
control system are completed within
a period of three years. The Infernal
Audifors provide recommendations

fo management to improve internal
controls after each review for
management and Audit Commitiee’s
consideration.

During 2010, the Infernal Auditors
reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with
relevant policies and procedures of
the Company. The scope covered the
following processes:

° BUSTV Advertising
- Soles and Marketing

- Controls over the MMOB System
Enhancement Project

- Billing, Credit Controls and Receipt

Handling

* BUSBODY and IN-BUS Advertising

- Sales and Marketing
- Operation and Confract
Compliance

- Billing, Credit Confrols and
Receipt Handling

* Follow up review on 2009 findings

Based on the findings and comments
from the Internal Auditors and Audit
Committee, the Board considered
the internal control system effective
and adequate for the year ended

31 December 2010. No significant
areas of concern that might affect
the Company’s shareholders were

identified.

EORMERRE EAREERER -
AEENREEAAMAGNERERD - M
AEBEEMEEERZRASIELER - &
HlETHESl - RAIREEI - ARERA
AEERE—(EEBEREEENEIRE
REFEENERE  TEREEAIEZER

ERESF

B ETIELR - B EBEEF A,
B RERIES LARES  TARAER
ABRERENBEEEOGHT - 048
AR MBI « BTRBRAE
AEORBIE - LHZFRARANK
BRI (R -

EEEENARERABTHER MERE
EHE MERELBIPBRTRER
AREZZEE RNERBENERERE
BMAMEENEREY  TRZE  EX
R R EFIER -

EZEHM
BERNDPZEERAREERZEER
A EZETE - ABRBMEFOENR
R AR B AMEREFE - B2 N
BT R E IR = F ATERK « IREITR
Rimaiik - REREMmERERERMEAE
B EADEENZEUAHERERER

RZZ—FF  NEZHEC R 8RR
RERFREARBEBRELEFNAR
o BHMBERRE

o B+ERES
S R e
EBSERRGRAER M
RF - REERREEEE

o BIEFHBRELERABES LY
RS
BERANARM
R REERREEEE

o HoTTAFHMERETRER

=z
=
=N

BRERNSZEMREZEEEMENER
RER BEZFERR BE-_T-TF
T A=+ HILFERNRBEESE S
BYRRSH  TEEADNRRRAEZEL
FEMINBERFEE -



Price-sensitive Information

With respect fo procedures and
infernal controls for the handling
and dissemination of price-sensitive
information, the Company

* is aware of its obligations under
the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that information that is
expected fo be price-sensitive
should be announced immediately;

e conducts ifs affairs with close
regard fo the “Guide on disclosure
of pricesensitive information” issued
by the Stock Exchange in 2002;

* has included in its Code of
Conduct a sfrict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or
insider information; and

* has esfablished and implemented
procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's
affairs. Senior staff of the Group
are identified and authorised to act
as the Company's spokespersons
and respond fo enquiries in
allocated areas of issues.

Audit
Fix

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the
independence of External Auditors
should not be impaired by other
non-audit assignments, the Group
ensures that assignments other than
statutory audits undertaken by External
Auditors should not have an adverse
impact on their independence. The
External Audifors are also required

fo review their relationship with the
Group and furnish confirmation to

the Audit Committee confirming their
independent status.

During 2010, the External Auditors
(including any entity under common
confrol, ownership or management
with the external auditors or any
entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all
relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally) provided
the following audit and non-audit
services fo the Group. Defails are sef
out below:

Non-audit services
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An independence confirmation has
been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the

year ended 31 December 2010

and thereafter fo the date of this
Annual Report, the External Auditors
are independent of the Group in
accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Code of Conduct

The Group'’s Code of Conduct for
Directors and Employees (the “CCDE")
has long been established to ensure
that both Directors and employees
are kept abreast of and fulfill a

set of defined ethical obligations

and appropriate behaviours when
conducling businesses and/or
performing their duties. The CCDE
also provides guidance on
responsibility to the Group's
shareholders, cusfomers and the
community. Any member in breach
of the CCDE 'is subject fo disciplinary
action. The CCDE is updated from
fime to time, faking info account
changes in the relevant legislation
and the business environment.

Investors Relations and
Communications

The Company continues fo pursue a
pro-active policy of promoting investor
relations and communications by
holding meetings with institutional
shareholders and analysts. In

P.44

accordance with the Listing Rules,

the Company would arrange for the
nofice to shareholders to be sent in
the case of annual general meefings
af least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and fo be sent at least 10
clear business days before in the case
of all other meetings. Under the Bye-
laws of the Company, all shareholders
have 21 clear days’ nofice of the
Annual General Meeting and Special
General Meeting for the passing of

a special resolution, and 14 clear
days’ notice of all other general
meefings at which the Direcfors and
Committee Chairmen or members are
available to answer their questions.
The results of any voting by poll are
announced and published as soon

as possible, but in any event no later
than 30 minutes before the earlier of
the commencement of the morning
frading session or any pre-opening
session on the business day following
the meeting, on the Stock Exchange’s
and the Company’s website together
with defails of the meeting, including
the time and venue and major
resolutions. As a channel to further
promote effective communication, the
Company's website is maintained fo
disseminate corporate information
and other relevant financial and non-
financial information electronically and
on a fimely basis.

During 2010, the Board confirmed
that there were no significant changes
made in the Company’s Byelaws.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
(the “Directors”) submit herewith their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2010.

Principal place of business

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermudo and
has its registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamillon HM11, Bermuda and principal place of business at @
Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of media
sales and management and administrative services for Multi-
media On-board ["MMOB" or "“BUS-TV"], transit vehicle exteriors
("BUS-BODY") and interiors [“IN-BUS") advertising businesses
and the operation of media advertising management services
through marketing advertising spaces on transit vehicle exteriors,
inferiors, shelters and outdoor signages and the provision of
advertising agency services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group during the financial
year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 56 to
125 of this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK4.85 cents per share (2009: HK1.41 cents per share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
26 to the financial statements. There were no movements during
the year.

Transfer to reserves

loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
before dividends, of HK$61,641,000 (2009: profit of
HK$14,016,000) has been transferred to reserves. Details
of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 26 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up fo the date of
this report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman
GBS, JP
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman

Ceased to be
Alternate Director to
Mr Anthony NG
on 12 May 2010
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman
Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI™*
BBS, MBE, JP
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan
Leung™ BBS, JP
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
Mr Anthony NG

Managing Director
Resigned as Director on

12 May 2010

Mr MAK Chun Keung

Mr John Anthony MILLER
SBS, OBE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

*  Independent Non-Executive Director
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87 and Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), Mr John Anthony MILLER, Mr Alex MO Tik Sang, Mr
Edmond HO Tat Man and Mr YUNG Wing Chung retire from
the Board of Directors (the “Board”] by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service confract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
stafutory obligations.

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2010 had the
following interests in the shares of the Company, its holding
companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) at that date as recorded in the register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions required to be

kept under section 352 of the SFO:

===

REARANARMANE/ERBEAHARS
FRERABEREFS LRI ETRAL) M
BIARTE HBERELE FHELLE [FEX
RERBKEAEKEGERTEZS(ES
g ERRASETHRRBFAS LREE
£

AR B o E AE ] Y BB % )0 AR R RO B A R AT Y
REBFAG LIREEENEET LR —F
NEARRREEAMBARIKLILEANK - &
TR ER B (B —ROKE RSN ) 10wl K JE 7R B9 AR 75
8K -

ESRED HEROREEENE
mR KRR
BE(GESRAEEIDEIS2EREAFEN
EERBETRABRSRAAZRMNEE -
R-E-—TF+-A=+ - AEANEERZA
RADE - HERAF - HEBARRE AR
B(ERR(ELRAKED)) MBAPEGUT
s

Bk

Interests in issued shares REBITROPHER
% of
total
Total issued
number of shares
Personal Family Corporate Other  shares held 28
Beneficial interests interests interests interests interests fEigz2:) BRTRH
EnfEn AARR Kk ARER Hiigs R EE BAk
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AQF BREEEK0ITHNEER
Ms Winnie NG [Note 2/ RS (32 2) 1,000,000 - - 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH") (Note /): Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
BEERERERAR(HABD (HZ])  EREEBE I TNEER
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEELT 2,000 - - - 2,000 0.0%
Ms Winnie NG [Nofe 3) mER T (HF3) 41,416 - - 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%
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Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures (continued)

Interests in issued shares (continued)

Notes:
1 TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

2 Ms Winnie NG has interest in 123,743 shares in the Company as a
beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the shares.

3  Ms Winnie NG has interest in 21,000,609 shares in TIH as a

beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the shares.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or other associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required fo be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Share option scheme

The Company has a share option scheme [the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 7 June 2001 whereby the Directors are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The purpose
of the Scheme is to provide an opportunity for employees of
the Group to acquire an equity participation in the Company
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years ending on 6 June 2011,
after which no further options will be granted.
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Share option scheme (continued)

The total number of securities available for issue under the
Scheme as at 31 December 2010 was 99,736,533 shares
which represented 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at 31 December 2010. In respect of the maximum
entittement of each participant under the Scheme, the number of
securities issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant in any 12-month period is limited fo
1% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue. The options are
unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of HK$0.1 of the Company.

As at 31 December 2010, no options were outstanding.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

At 31 December 2010, the interests or short positions of
the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

BREE

RZZE—ZF+-A=1+—8  BEZE T4
%"‘TTE’J 518 500,736,533 M5 - 1B
RAR=ZE—TF+-_A=1+—BEBETRAMN
0% REZTETS2BENRELR - B
%Eﬂ%&&ﬂ 1IH%@F?W€W%FE’JH%H§%
RERTRBERTHESHE FRALXAD

BITEBRBRMI% BRETE LT - lf\ﬁﬁﬂx

BETHREARBARR -—REREEEEO0.1
TR BB AV RER

RZB-—2F+-A=+—0  #HEEARTE
FEAHE -
B EMES - ARE] - HEMERAR - HERQ

A3k [F R P 8 2 B 348 A 4R PO A o] B PR 2 SR A A
R FEFUEBBEALARFREMEMELR
DR AR SRR HE RS 1T 2

FTERRREMALIARS
BREEZNESZREAR

16 BA iR

Z-ZE+_A=+-0B BRARAREER
RITRABIINALHAFHEARRHEEM
EE(EZER(EFRPEGADEXVE)
D RBEAROHESSIAE  BREBGESR
BHEPDEXNVBE2RINBHRETEHNEARA
7 BEEBARGMBERRAA  URE(EH R
HEGP)EIBORAHRNAR A FENELM
EoHBMAT

| OSS w oEn %
WESE%"%]qu

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
SRAEEEY0. THLER

Registered
shareholders
BRERE
Substantial shareholders TERR
TIH (Note) B (M) -
KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410
Other person EfAL
DJE Investment S.A. and others DJE Investment S.A. R Eff 69,956,000
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures (continved)

KMB Resources Limited owns 728,127,410 shares in the
Company. KMB Resources Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of TIH, which is accordingly deemed to be interested in the same

number of shares held by KMB Resources Limited in the Company
under the SFO.

Note:

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
affributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:
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BsF © KMB Resources Limited & 728,127,410

AR BIRED o KMB Resources Limited &
HBNZENB AR HBEGERRH
BB - HBWR BB KMB Resources
Limited FTEFHERIEE R 15 ©
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Percentage of the Group’s total

EAREEBEEAS L
Sales Purchases
HHE BE
The largest customer BREF 8%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREF&EG 19%
The largest supplier BRAMFER 37%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ERHERAR 70%

At no time during the year have the Directors and their
associates had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.
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Major customers and suppliers (continued)

During the year, Environmental Protection Department and
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Llimited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, are the largest customer and
largest supplier of the Group respectively.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Law in Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 26 to 32 of this Annual Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 126
to 127 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of The People’s Republic of China ("PRC") under
the regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes are
defined contribution plans and their particulars are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.
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KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- ZFHEFMEFAERESR  HEBREIEE -
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as EREREFHSHTMEBHR/ARBZEE N
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming RERMREIHRITMHRIBEFAE LR -
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board REEED

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak BREZEE L

Chairman e

Hong Kong, 15 March 2011 B8 —E——F=A+EH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
BERMBERERAARRNBE LB RS

N

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of RoadShow Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of RoadShow Holdings Llimited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”’) set out on pages 56 fo
125, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
tfrue and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

P.54

BEABERERAIAKRRMN
BYZHERE

(RBEREZMAZHBRAF)

ARBHATEEHMADERZTNESOR
EFI2BERABERERAR(ERR ) R
EMBAR([ERE ] NEAMBKERER - ks
MBBREER_F-—FTF+_A=1T—HNK
ARRAFREERER  RBEZRLFENRA
BHEX HE2EKRER SARZEPHRIE
RREMER  URTREHBRHEREMH
EREEM -

EENGEVBRRAAENER

ERFEEARERBRESHMASRMI
(BERAMBREEAIRFE(ARGIDNRER
ERUGEUBRE  USHEEPBRRIELE
EMATHREE  UREZBEEERRBREEAY
BREMBENRIZS - UESEMBERT
BEARAFLHERMEBNEANERRL -

BBEMBEE

BAMEERRERMANBREZSEA MK
RELBR - ABEENRRERE-NAN—F
(REVE)EOHEMMRTE - BEREBRRME -
BRUCASH  BRFIMBEETARERMAE - &
PSR ABREENAT  HEMEMCALAR
REEEREE -

BRMERBEETESHMAGEMA(TEENE
ANETEZ  ZFEUBRRKEMNETERS
- URERNTEZ  UAAEBEBTEUENBR
REB I EREMEARERRAL -



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group's loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
15 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEZR-RET A=t -HRLEFE(RBEHE)

Note
i =

Turnover =E 3 3&12
Other revenue and other net income HAWA R E U 5 F 58 4
Total operating revenue REWABTE
Operating expenses ReEHEM
Royalty, licence and management fees EANE  BHEREEE
Cost of production SR A
Staff expenditure BT A
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE
Cost of inventories FERAK
Repairs and maintenance HIERRE
Impairment loss of media assets HEEERESE
Impairment loss of accounts receivable FE W BR FOR B 5 18
Other operating expenses Hitn K&
Total operating expenses KREBREH
Profit from operations ReEBA
Impairment loss of other non-current financial HEAhEREBESMEERE

assets E’B 17(a)
Share of loss of associate FEiLEEAREBA
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest  fR{EHEHE AR MO ERH

in associate Wz
(Loss)/profit before taxation MEBLA(B518)BA 5
Income tax FriSH 6(a)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE(BE)BA
Attributable to: BT
Equity shareholders of the Company AABRR 9
Non-controlling interests RS
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE(EE)BF
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(ER) BT

(in Hong Kong cents) (&AL 11
Arising from the Group’s operations EEEAEEKEXEY
Arising from impairment loss of other EEXBHMERDERNEE

non-current financial assets REBE
Basic L=
Diluted g

The notes on pages 63 to 125 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year are set out in note 10.
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DM

10

2010
$/000
Fx
325,231
31,213

356,444

(135,866)
(62,964)
(54,454)

(6,498)
(5,849)
(5,171)
(171)
(318)
(24,039)
(295,330)

61,114

(110,000)

(48,886)
(8,269)

A
(61,641)

4,486
(57,155)

4.85

(11.03)
(6.18)
N/AFER

2009
$000
Fr
196,361
26,778

(84,077)
(23,496)
(40,315)
(9,875)
(5,505)
(3,511)

(10)
(19,508)
(186,297)

36,842

(9,801)
(4,544)

177

22,674
(4,454)

18,220
14,016

4,204
18,220

1.41

1.41
N/ATE A

CIEEFI25ANMERBAM MR — &
o REFEEMAR B IR E NN



BRABERERA A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZERESR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BECS-SF+ A=+ RLEFE(BBEHE)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year (after tax and reclassification
adjustments):

Available-for-sale debt securities:

Changes in fair value recognised in the fair
value reserve during the year

Exchange differences released upon deemed

disposal of partial interest in associate

2010
$/000
¥
REE(FHE) BT (57,155)
KEEH MR EKE
(BRBREHFLERRE)
AHHEELES
FABRINAIAEBEREN
NREEED

RREHEBRE QXM OERE
BERE R E

Exchange differences on translation of the BREBBLUINES

financial statements of operations outside B ERERH

Hong Kong EHERE 559
Total comprehensive income for the year #F&E2HEKHAE (56,236)
Attributable to: BENT :
Equity shareholders of the Company AABRE (60,722)
Non-controlling interests JEIERER 4,486
Total comprehensive income for the year #*E£EZ2HEWZEAE (56,236)

—E-BFEH

2009
$000
T
18,220

(120)

(3,112)

14,988

10,784
4,204

14,988

The notes on pages 63 to 125 form part of these financial $63BEEH 125 MM EEBANKHEN —

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

At 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RIB-FF+"A=+—RH(RBEEFE)

Note 2010 2009
B & $/000 $'000
Fx T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13 8,406 13,407
Media assets REgEE 14 - 372
Non-current prepayments JERBNTANRRIA 15 44,268 19,160
Other non-current financial assets HibERBemERE 17 219,140 231,664
Deferred tax assets BELEBIEEE 24(b) 4,067 3,802
275,881 268,405
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 979 1,138
Amount due from ultimate holding company — EUWSRKIER A TARIE 19(a) 5,004 4,773
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWE R M B A R FRIE 19(d) 3,867 2,997
Accounts receivable FE UL BRFX 20 78,302 64,470
Other receivables and deposits HibEWERFA RS 8,422 8,369
Prepayments ANRIA 15 9,580 9,580
Pledged bank deposits SIRFRTERN 21 41,200 51,200
Bank deposits and cash BITEZRES 22 383,521 447,934
530,875 590,461
Current liabilities REBaE
Accounts payable FEATBRTR 23 4,729 4,931
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries N ) NEIE /S| 19(d) 4,370 3,286
Other payables and accruals Hib R R FERT & B 53,553 39,228
Current tax payable FEASAEABLIE 24(a) 8,350 1,681
71,002 S 49,126
Net current assets REBEEZFEE 459,873 IE-ZAEEEN
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAES 735,754 809,740
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREAE 24(b) 86 573
NET ASSETS EEFE 735,668 809,167
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAE#HES
Share capital &N 26(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves #HiEe 628,455 703,240
Total equity attributable to equity AR BREEER
shareholders of the Company Pk 728,192 802,977
Non-controlling interests FERER 7,476 6,190
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 735,668 809,167

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

15 March 2011.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
BREZEF L
Chairman

E

The notes on pages 63 to 125 form part of these financial

statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
BERER

At 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RIB-FBF+"A=+—-HREEHE)

BRABERERA A —E-2EFR

Note 2010
FfaE $/000
Fr
Non-current assets FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries HEBARRE 16 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B B A R FRIE 19(c) 636,863
699,698

Current assets REBEE
Amount due from ultimate holding company — FEWERAZIZR A TFIE 19(a) 5,004
Other receivables and deposits HitEWRRREZE 743
Pledged bank deposits SHEARTER 21 41,200
Bank deposits and cash RITERERES 22 193,765
240,712

Current liabilities RBaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A R FRIE 19(b) 233,107

Other payables and accruals

Hib R R BT B A

5,479

238,586

2,126

701,824

99,737
602,087

Net current assets REBEEFE

NET ASSETS EEFE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES REREES 26(a)
Share capital MR

Reserves RES

TOTAL EQUITY QB

701,824

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

15 March 2011.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
FREZEE L
Chairman

TiE

The notes on pages 63 to 125 form part of these financial

statements.

Alex MO Tik Sang

E@EE

Managing Director

EFREE

FOSHEF 125 ANM TR AN B REK AN — &
4 o
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RoadShow Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A >4 4
REREREHR
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_R-RF+__A=+—RLFE(REEE)

2010 Annual Report

Atributable o equity shareholders of the Company

ARARREL
Non-
Share Share  General  Confributed Other  Fairvalve  Exchonge  Refained controlling Tofol
capifol premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total inferests equity
MEE
Bx RMEE  -RiE  BHER  AbER i JERE  REEA & FEREE  BEER
$'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
T T T i i T T T i i T
Balance at Ro2RAE
1 January 2009 -R-AlEsR 99,737 531,769 839 (200) (603 - 17,074 193,447 842,061 12,386 854,447
Changes in equity for ~ —ZEREH
2009: REgE:
Profit for the year TEERF - - - - - - - 14,016 14016 4,204 18,220
Other comprehensive Efb2E
incone i - - - - - M0 B - B3 - B3
Tofal comprehensive income ~ AFE2EH &
for the year 5 - - - - - (120) (3,112) 14,016 10,784 4,204 14,988
Dividends approved in BELEE
respect of the previous BHEN
year ke - - - - - - S [ossE (49,868 - 988
Dividends paid fo non- EATFHER
controlling interests BRENRE - - - - - - - - - [10,400)  (10,400)
Balance at 31 it Sk
December 2009 and ~ =t-RER
1 January 2010 %-%F
-f-Bi&H 99,737 531,769 (200) 13962 157,595 802,977 6,190 809,167
Changes in equity for ~ —F-ZFH
2010: L B
[Loss)/profit for the year — AEE(EE) /B (61,641)  (61,641) (57,155)
Other comprehensive Eft2E
income s 919 919
Tofol comprehensive income  KFE2EHE
for the year a8 (61,641) (60,722)
Dividends approved in BBLEE
respect of the previous Bt
your ke (1,063)  (14,063) (14,063)
Dividends paid fo non- EAFHER
controlling interests BRNRS (3,200)  (3,200)
Balance at R-2-BE12R
31 December 2010 =+-BHEH 99737 531769 839 (2000 (605 14521 81891 728,192 7476 735,668

G3EEF 125 ANMEBAT BRI — =

o

The notes on pages 63 to 125 form part of these financial

statements.
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BRABERERA A —E-2EFR

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-ZET-A=T-BLFERBEHE)

Note 2009
g3 $000
Fr
Operating activities RETED
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELAT (B518), B F (48,886) 22,674
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation and amortisation E NN 6,498 9,875
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HERETEERF (176) -
Impairment loss of accounts receivable FEWERFURE R 318 10
Reversal of write-down of inventories B 77 5 BB (455) (263)
Impairment loss of media assets REEERERSE 171 -
Impairment loss of other non-current Hitk Ao mEERE
financial assets 3= 110,000 9,801
Share of loss of associate FELEE AR AR = 4,544
Interest income FMEWA (12,024) (13,648)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest  $R{EHEHE A R IMMHERH
in associate Wz = (177)
Foreign exchange gain fE A s (9,258) (705)
Operating profit before changes in EEESEHAN
working capital reEBR 46,188 32,111
Decrease in non-current prepayments ERB TS RIBR D 9,580 9,581
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERY (Em) 614 (57)
Increase in amount due from ultimate holding FEURE £ 1= RR A R FRIE
company & (231) -
Increase in amounts due from fellow FEUR[E) 2 B 1§ 22 B FRIE
subsidiaries bl (870) (1,134)
Increase in accounts receivable JFE U B SR A5 (14,150) (31,32¢)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables and HtEWERZRRIZEMD
deposits (# ) 1,430 (8,205)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable FEA BRI CRIAY) /N (202) 528
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to fellow FEEIZHIE A TZIEE M,
subsidiaries OR2) 1,084 (2,419)
Increase in other payables and accruals Hi B BRAR R ST & A m 22,728 3,506
Cash generated from operations REREETHNRS 66,171 2,585
Tax (paid)/refunded (BfY)REBIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BEREBRNER (2,352) (1,601)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded — BREBAEHR 2,338
— The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) — BERFEARKEME
income tax paid (M E D AEs (399)
Net cash generated from operating REBETHN
activities BHEFE 2,923
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RoadShow Holdings Limited

2010 Annual Report

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-ZF+ A=+ -BLEFERBYHE)

Note
Mt =

Investing activities RETES
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABEEEENT (35,991)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HERTEEEMBSNE 218
Payment for purchase of other non-current BAHMERBEREE

financial assets (e (76,090)
Repayment of loan from associate BEAREEER =
Loan to investee BERFHRIREDNR (26,127)
Interest received from associate 2WEE QRS -
Interest received B UF B 8,805
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR),/ REREZEHW

investing activities REFH (129,185)
Financing activities BMEER
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits maturing =18 B &2 EHRITIF X

over three months (#hn),w (43,546)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 23K RR1TZRR LD~ (3 0) 10,000
Dividends paid 2fRRE (14,063)
Dividends paid to non-controlling e FIHFERRRN

shareholders 3= (3,200)
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR),/ REBEZTEH

financing activities REeFHE (50,809)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BHE&RESZEWORL)

cash equivalents B AFE (116,175)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—HHWBRER

1 January ReEEY 251,987
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSFHH

changes - 5,224
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-ZA=+—-BWRER

31 December ReZEY 22 141,036

The notes on pages 63 to 125 form part of these financial

statements.
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$'000
Tt

(11,021)

(8,064)
25,830

3,203
12,632

212,158
(51,200
(49,868)

(10,400)

125,794

251,987

SEEFI20AMNMEBAMBRERMN—2



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REBETN - GERBYHE)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (“the Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is sef out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that certain investments (see note 1(d)] are stated at
their fair value.

(a)

(b)

EHEH
AMBRRCERBBEGAMAG([E
AEFMAg )EMNMAEERKE
AUBERELUN(EAYHREE
A1) - eRmAEANENCELMB
BELEA)  (FEGHEINEEE
AERDDRZRE - BEAREGFRA
REB(RARGIDHOBRERERE - &
MBBRTTEEEARERZAERA
AEZ ETRMT ERRA) &0 E A
BERE AEBRMANEIZEFHE
BMEBHNTX

ERGHALRDEGE THTREE
S(EBHBREE)  HEHITRE
[ ATERI A A R B R AR ARG
BB R A AT R R AR - M2 B
51| R 47 % e PR B o L 5 R 4 37 T B A
BT BT £ R A B BB AR B2
REBEETBENEHRREDNE
¥ o

HEREERESE
BE-T-TFEI-A=T—HLFE
A REBEADARKKBA
RICESS DR

RETBEHRRAEANAEEERES

RAE - A TRE(RME () iR
ERAREEIIR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEETIN  HRBEHE)

P.64

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and

liabilities,

various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assefts and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements are discussed in note 32.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
pofential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and fransactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
infra-group fransactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

(b) MBHEREREE(E)

RBUT (BB BREER )N
wRE - BEERFLY ST HRRNE
RAREE B  WARIEW®RES
B H B - AF RRR - B RAAME
F“EE?LE%@&%EFWV&%

ERTHEBAENSHEMARAE
BWEL  MSERTDEXREEERE
RIARBEEEMERNREHEERAER
EEMEABOER -  ERERTER
BIRZF T8 -

fEt RARERR IR EEER - M
FHRFET BT EF EERETNZ S
B BRETRZHAEAER  HHE
A METHERMRRKBEEEY
& RIZBRTREHE T & B3 R R 2R
BRI RER ©

FREEEERA(EEMBREEN)
BB S B IS SRR A E AR B 1 A B
BETE R 3274 ©

MBS DR K FERERS
MBARRRASEZHNER - EX

SEAEEH - EEROHEREER
RAREZEG PR - RIFEZHIE -

REF ARG R - RBATRNEER
SRBREERENA -

Bt~ AR A i 5 A IR R G AR GF A
EAMBHRERAN EERESEL RS
Rl REARFRRNESRERS &
SEARRIMNR S MAEENERRE
REN  BRERESMBRRE TN
2HEE SEARAENRZHMES
MABRBRRERERKEHRNT

AEHE - HERARNARBEERL ERE
EBRIEM



(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary nof
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect fo
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assefs.

Non-controlling interests are presenfted in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made fo
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
([see note 1(d)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.

In the Company's balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated af cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

(c) MEBQRRFERELS(E)

Jriictka (AR D BUR RS )15
FAARAEERIMEEFTNONE DA
R MAKE Y S\ttt BT RSN
RAEABEEMBEIMER  BEAKHE
BENZERSABNAMBAEESR
MAENEME - RERNEBaHME - &
SEMRERAA EEYIRFERER
M B AR BRFEENLH - 5
BT IR B -

FERERARGREERBRANE
@B T EARD A RRREE DD R
R ARBEEANNFERESNES
BRfA MR 2HRERTUAOE T
ERERMAR B BIRNFEARBRAR
FEJEE kR

ARERMBARMESESH N T EH
KREEHE BREEEIHIE TE
RARSTRBEERES R IFERER
ZEBE URRBHESCES BT
SHERHE  TTEERER -

EAREBRERMB AR ZEHE 8
BEHEZMBRRIZ 2 MERDIER
HMELZRRKEENBRER - 1
KREBHRERRZAMBERAREF
EARREAREERR FHELER
RUGHEREREERZAAEER
Bt 1(d)) 35 (fif 28 PR ) 1) 46 e 8 0 B 2
RAIHAREHEBREZKA

ARABERBRANMBARKRETS
R RO E SR (R KRR (i) 5 8R »
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEETIN  HRBEHE)

P.66

(d) Other investments in debt securities and equity interest

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt securities and equity inferest, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation fechniques whose variables include only
data from observable markets. Cost includes aftributable
fransaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in debt securities and equity inferest
held for trading are classified as current assefs. Any
atfributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividend and interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out in notes 1(o)(ix) and (viii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and infention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the balance
sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note

1{i)).

Investments in equity inferest that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note

1{i)).

(d) HteERESZRBRERE

AEBRADAFEHER R A ET
B R BRERENBRRMT

BEBEZRBERENFRAABET
R AEXZER BRIFAAEBEREN
BRECEABEMSRBENGEET X
FRAENEE - HABRRBEERIZK
Ao EATHIERN - ZEREELR
RBE D EIRAT HEANRE

FIEEENBEBESFRRERESER
MENEE - FAHEBEX SN AT NESE
KEERER ASESEGELEER
EFFEAAEE BEEEOHEMK
mREEINESER EEEFER
Ml mREEFET TR EERE
RRAERRERFE - BEARE RF
BAR BB 5F 1(o)(ix) B (viii) BT & 8 B R
TR o

AEER/RARRERABOENRE
BRAEINMNBEMERES D8
REBRIMES - BEEINHEHFR
BERAREREERNEERBRD
RORMEE() -

EERERMGME R A BETEA S
ENBEEREENAREREBERE
ERBERAER(RHE ) -



(d) Other investments in debt securities and equity interest

(e)

(continued)

Investments in debt securities and equity inferest
which do not fall into any of the above categories
are classified as available-for-sale investment. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the fair value reserve, except foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of monetfary items such as debt securities which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend
income from these investments is recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy sef out in note 1(o)
(ix) and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1{olviii). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity fo
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1{(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of refirement or disposal.

(d) HtvERESRBRERE(H)

(e)

AN st A e AR 1 O (B 7 R o N B
RENBERAHHERE - XEHERN
BEAEREFAEAAEE  AKE
ERE AR B RN E 2 s
NER  TREZTFOIABERED
MR HERE¥EB(NEKESF)DN
BEKARHMELNINERERER
BEERNBRTHER ZEFRENREK
AR EE 1 (o)(ix) PRE B R EE =
hEER  MUZERETE  AIAER
MEEFTEANM B SRR EE 1 (o) (viii)
FrEl R R & P HER - MR L HER
ZERBSIRERE(RME ()8
RithaEReaEEEN S BER

Sz
m °

AEBMNARBEAN HERERKREET
HMERARR/ RIBRAEHERE -

BEEERITE
Bl 7€ & B T34 AN R R 5T B RORUE B
BORMEEI))HNER °

BEBEERBERBILERMELN
BE AHEMSREFEEZBRN
FRHEZHENZHEET - LR MESK D
EREBESEAER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEETIN  HRBEHE)

P.68

(e)

(f)

(9)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5 -7 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease term
Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Programming library

(i) Programming library consists of commissioned
programming and contracted programming cost
in respect of programming rights of presentation.
Expenditure on commissioned and contracted
programmes is amortised to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the licence period.
Programming library is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1{i]).

(i) Cost of programmes produced in-house is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Media assets

Media assets represent advertising rights which are the
costs of acquiring operating rights for the placement of
advertisements in advertising display panels in the PRC
and include any directly attributable costs of bringing
advertising display panels to their present condition
and location for their intended use. Advertising rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Advertising rights are amortised to profit or loss on
a straightline basis over 5 years, being the agreed
periods of use of the advertising rights.

(e)

(f)

(9)

BEEERIE(E)
WEDRRTIIEEEERRB MG
ERFEH  EMRAEFARSBEE(ME)
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(h) Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubitful
debts (see note 1[i)], except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 1{i)).

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in available-for-sale debt
securities and equity interest and receivables
Investments in availablefor-sale debt securities and
equity inferest (other than investments in subsidiaries:
see note 1[i)lii)] and current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Ob]ecfive evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

(h) B AR 3K % EL At FE U B K

FEWERA R EbERERNEEDAE
BEWER - EBIREHEK AR RERER
B CRHTEE1(i) 78R - HEHERERERA
mABEATEHTEETERRHE
BERKTBFEYTFAEKR ER
EREERANRREREREB(RN =
1(i])5I8R -

BEERE

(i) THRHEEKEEFRKERERE
U f 7% 44 8t B
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(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in available-for-sale
debt securities and equity interest and receivables
(continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity investment carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
refurn for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment loss
for equity inferest carried at cost is not reversed.

- For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the assefs’ carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in available-for-sale

debt securities and equity interest and receivables

(continued)

— For available-for-sale debt securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost [net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
fo an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors
and bills receivable included within accounts
receivable, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date fo
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets;

—  media assets;

- programming library; and
- investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rafe
that reflects current market assessments of tfime
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently [i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets [continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an inferim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment festing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 1{i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an inferim period
in respect of unquoted equity inferest carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

(j) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the firstin-first-out cost method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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(i)

(k)

()

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories o net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted atf the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment fo fax payable in respect of previous
years.
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(m) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same faxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected fo reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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P.76

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assefs
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
fo be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed fo the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current fax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to setfle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and seftle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
it they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
seftled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and seftle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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(n)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
fiming or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to seftle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

Revenue is
it is

loss as follows:

(i) Income from multi-media sales is recognised
when the related advertisements are telecasted or
commercials appear before the public. Revenue is
stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(ii) Income from bus interiors and bus exterior
advertising is recognised when the related
advertisements appear before the public. Revenue is

stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(iii) Media sales income from advertising on transit
vehicle shelters is recognised when the related
advertisements appear before the public. Revenue is
stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(iv)] Fee income from media sales management and
administrative services is recognised when the
related services are rendered.
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(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(v) Signage production fees are recognised when the
related services are rendered.

(vi) Income from advertising agency services is
recognised when the related services are rendered.

(vii)Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
merchandise have been transferred to the customers.
Revenue is stated net of trade discounts.

(viii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(ix) Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment is established.

Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a fransaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right fo
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
fime in refurn for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a defermination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

leases which do not fransfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
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(q) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated atf their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date
using the binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
opfions that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve). The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account] or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar
while that for subsidiaries which operate in the PRC is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Company is
Hong Kong dollar.

Foreign currency fransactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the

the transaction dates.

foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assefs and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
fransaction dates. Non-monetary assefs and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity
which relate to that foreign operation is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, fo confrol the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(r)

(s)
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(s) Related parties [continued)

(t)

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close
family member of such an individual,
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

or is an

(v] the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a postemployment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’'s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

environment.
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BERIN - GRBEHE)

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interprefations that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

e HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

e Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements

e Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations — plan fto sell the
conirolling interest in a subsidiary

® Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

These developments resulted in changes in accounting
policy but none of these changes in policy have a material
impact on the current or comparative periods, for the
following reasons:

e The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 27 and HKFRS 5 have not yet had a material
effect on the Group's financial statements as these
changes will first be effective as and when the Group
enters into a relevant tfransaction (for example, a
business combination, a disposal of a subsidiary or a
non-cash distribution) and there is no requirement to
restate the amounts recorded in respect of previous such
tfransactions.

® The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS
27 (in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling
inferests (previous|y known as minority interests) in
excess of their equity interest) have had no material
impact as there is no requirement fo restate amounts
recorded in previous periods and no such deferred tax
assets or losses arose in the current period.
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Further details of these changes in accounting policies are ZESHRREDNE—SFHBOT :
as follows:
e As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised 2008, o HRNIRMEBMBRELEDDE IR

any business combination acquired on or after 1
January 2010 is recognised in accordance with the new
requirements and defailed guidance contained in HKFRS
3 (revised 2008). These include the following changes
in accounting policies:

- Transaction costs that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination, such as
finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and
other professional and consulting fees, will be
expensed as incurred, whereas previously they were
accounted for as part of the cost of the business
combination and therefore impacted the amount of
goodwill recognised.

- If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior fo obtaining control, these interests
will be treated as if disposed of and re-acquired
at fair value on the date of obtaining control.
Previously, the step-up approach would have been
applied, whereby goodwill was computed as if
accumulated at each stage of the acquisition.

— Contingent consideration will be measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
in the measurement of that contingent consideration
unrelated to facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date will be recognised in profit
or loss, whereas previously these changes were
recognised as an adjustment to the cost of the
business combination and therefore impacted the
amount of goodwill recognised.

— If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other
deductible temporary differences and these fail
to meet the recognition criteria for deferred tax
assets at the date of acquisition, any subsequent
recognition of these assets will be recognised
in profit or loss, rather than as an adjustment to
goodwill as was previously the policy.
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- In addition to the Group’s existing policy of

measuring non-controlling interests (previously known
as “minority inferests”) in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets, in future the Group
may elect, on a fransaction by fransaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interest at fair value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
3 (revised 2008], these new accounting policies will
be applied prospectively to any business combinations
in the current or future periods. The new policy in
respect of recognition in the movement of deferred tax
assets will also be applied prospectively to accumulated
tax losses and other deductible temporary differences
acquired in previous business combinations. No
adjustments have been made to the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded the
application of this revised standard.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (amended
2008), the following changes in policies have been
applied as from 1 January 2010:

- If the Group acquires an additional interest in a
non-wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction will
be accounted for as a fransaction with equity
shareholders (the non-controlling interests) in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill will
be recognised as a result of such fransactions.
Similarly, if the Group disposes of part of its
interest in a subsidiary but still retains control,
this transaction will also be accounted for as a
transaction with equity shareholders (the non-
controlling inferests) in their capacity as owners and
therefore no profit or loss will be recognised as
a result of such transactions. Previously the Group
freated such transactions as step-up fransactions and
parfial disposals, respectively.
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- If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
fransaction will be accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
any remaining interest retained by the Group
being recognised at fair value as if reacquired.
In addition, as a result of the adoption of the
amendment to HKFRS 5, if at the end of a reporting
period the Group has the intention to dispose of
a controlling interest in a subsidiary, the entire
interest in that subsidiary will be classified as held
for sale [assuming that the held for sale criteria in
HKFRS 5 are met] irrespective of the extent to which
the Group will retain an interest. Previously such
fransactions were freated as partial disposals.

In accordance with the fransitional provisions in HKAS
27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in the current or future
periods and therefore previous periods have not been
restated.

As a result of the amendments to HKAS 27, as from
1 January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly
owned subsidiary will be allocated between the
controlling and non-controlling interests in proportion
to their interests in that entity, even if this results in
a deficit balance within consolidated equity being
attributed to the non-controlling interests. Previously, if
the allocation of losses to the non-controlling interests
would have resulted in a deficit balance, the losses
were only allocated to the non-controlling interests if the
non-controlling interests were under a binding obligation
fo make good the losses. In accordance with the
fransitional provisions in HKAS 27, this new accounting
policy is being applied prospectively and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.

- WAKRBEKRENME DR RESE -
ERAXSBNANLEEZME QA
M2 S AR - A& Bl R & K
R ) 2 Bl DA B B 3T R BB 0 77
ANEARBERER - U5 AREKR
MTCEERBREERDF SR E
Al MRAKEERERRER L
SEMBARNERES  AIEZ
MEBARNEHRESKIABARA
BFEBRRENA(BEEUNBREE
ADESHABBAFTENER)
THAEEESL KRS DB
e BRXZNBEIESBDHE
BRRE o

RIE(ERB G ERDE 27 K1 BR
X - ZEMGAHERSEARRRL
ARAEANORS - Bt ARBEYTEE
JBEHRENERRS -

BRIB(ER G ERDE27RERT - B
—E-ZFE-F—B FrEMEAR
A A A0 (E ) S IR 7 15 M o B R AR
BEZBANNESEREGZERNE
st 1T - BV E K B B IR A
HEENGAES LR BGRB8
F WRBEIEEIFERESSER
BRiss ARBREVEFRERES
BEENRNUNBHBZEERNBER T2
EFEbiEs - RE(ERB G ERDE
27 SR H)BIR MR T G R BUR K
ERERRANR AU BB EEH
R MBS -

P.85



RoadShow Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RIE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEETIN  HRBEHE)

3 Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
media sales and management and administrative services
for Multi-media On-board ("MMOB" or “BUS-TV"), transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors advertising businesses and
the operation of media advertising management services
through marketing advertising spaces on transit vehicle
exteriors, inferiors, shelters and outdoor signages and the
provision of advertising agency services.

Turnover represents income from media sales and
management and administrative services and advertising
agency services, net of agency commission and rebate.

4 Other revenue and other net income

EE 3]

AEBIZREARDEER(IRBZE
BIELERDEL FEE®HEHIH
BRERMABESEBRERBHEE B2
RATHRY - WRBEBHETEERMES I
B BRARS REZRFINEESHENES
i REFBESEERY  URREHRES
REIRF

BEEENKREASREME - REEE
HE  BERTERBARBESRERBEH
WA e

H W A B E Ath W 55 7% 88

2009
$'000
Ft
Other revenue Higlg A
Interest income from listed available-for-sale RELHAUHEEEKES
debt securities OESIBSNT N -
Other interest income HibF| 2 13,648
Interest income from financial assets not at REWIFEBEFIZANE
fair value through profit or loss BEIRNEHEENTE
PN 12,024 13,648
Sales of merchandise BmisE 9,133 8,243
Sundry revenue Hapg A 1,808 721
22,965 22,612
Other net income Hitt Wz B8
Exchange gain A& 8,072 638
Reversal of provisions for production costs EERAEERD - 3,528
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEE KRR 176 -
8,248 4,166
31,213 26,778
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5 (Loss)/profit before taxation 5 BREAI(EE) BT
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREAT(BE) BT ME
2010 2009
$’000 $'000
Frx Fr
Amortisation of media assets HEEEEHE 205 406
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN & 2,330 1,978
Contributions to defined contribution retirement EREMHFCRIRETEIN
schemes #H= 1,165 1,000
Depreciation e 6,293 9,469
Impairment loss of accounts receivable FEWER TR E R B 318 10
Impairment loss of media assets HREERERSE 171 —
Impairment loss of other non-current financial HiERBERMERE
assets HEER 110,000 9,801
Operating lease charges REHERH
- land and buildings — T REF 3,481 2,551
- audio and visual equipment — HERB 5,205 3,185
6 Income tax in the consolidated income 6 JINMmEBBRNATEH
statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (o) FIRGEBERNFES !
represents:
2009
$'000
T
Current tax REBIE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the — AREEFBEREH
current year L. 2162 e 3,502
Provision for the PRC income tax PE TSR 249
Over-provision in respect of prior years BREFEBRERE -
249
3,751
Deferred tax B IR
Reversal and origination of temporary R ERNEER
differences 'R 703
Income tax expense FREH X 4,454

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year is  AEERE B FS BB E T IRBAEE (5 ER
calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated FEFNI16.5%(ZETNE : 16.5%):1E o
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for subsidiaries  RAEIKKBA RN BAIZEHERTHER
in the PRC is charged at the appropriate current rates of ~ Bk & -

taxation ruling in the PRC.
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6 FIRNGEBBERNAE @

6 Income tax in the consolidated income
statement (continued)

(b) ZEARMEBHENHR BN XHES T
(B8), BRNYE :

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

P.88

2010 2009
$/000 $7000
T Fir
(Loss)/profit before taxation MRELAT(E1E),BF (48,886) 22,674
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before MERBAT(BE), BRIRZ
taxation, calculated at the rates BERANABREALER
applicable to profits in the tax BRAKREAEN
jurisdictions EHRHIE (8,205) 4,687
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR X ETE 18,287 842
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBRBANTESE (2,810) (1,953)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBKEENHRESE 1,088 1,142
Tax effect of distributable profits of AT B E DR BRI
associate RERE (227)
Withholding tax in respect of interest FEWAH
income FEMB 304
Over-provision in prior years BIEFEBERE -
Others Hity (341)
Actual tax expense ERBIEEX 4,454




BABEZERERAR —B-BEFR

7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of REFE(RAGHDIE 16T ER LT RA
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules BRE EEMeRENT :

is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and Discrefionary scheme
fees benefits bonuses contributions
E2c - 3: BN E
BEEHwE RER BIETEAL it
$/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
T T T T
Executive Director HITES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang EWMAELE 90 1,606 12
Non-Executive FHITES
Directors
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak FREZEE L
Ms Winnie NG hgEg L+
Mr YUNG Wing Chung BKBEE
Mr Anthony NG RAKELE
Mr MAK Chun Keung EIREEE

Mr John Anthony MILLER ~ HZ2#E%E4E
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man  faliE3 %4

Independent Non- BIYFHITES
Executive Directors

Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUl  #E®iEL

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung TRE[/L

Professor Stephen RICRHEE
CHEUNG Yan Leung
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7 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 7 EEME )
2009
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
E = 1 BIREHE
EEWS k@A BB 1AL R st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive Director HITES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang FHEELE 55 1,400 534 12 2,001
Non-Executive FHITES
Directors
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak BREIZEE L 66 — - - 66
Ms Winnie NG LMLt 100 — — - 100
Mr YUNG Wing Chung BKABRE 108 - — - 108
Mr Anthony NG RAKELEE 55 - - - 55
Mr MAK Chun Keung FiRBEE 55 - - - 55
Mr John Anthony MILLER  BEZB18E4E 55 - - - 55
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man  {A3EX5E4E 55 - - - 55
Independent Non- BYFHITES
Executive Directors
Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUl  #RE®EL 106 - - - 106
Mr HUI Ki On FHZ R 40 — — — 40
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung EREEL 118 — — - 118
Professor Stephen RICRHE
CHEUNG Yan Leung 82 - — — 82
895 1,400 534 12 2,841
8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EEME&AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one IEABESMEATFRBE—R(ZETN
(2009: one) is a Director whose emoluments are disclosed E—Z)EE ZEEMORMIT/E
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of EoHHMNZ(“ZETAE : NR)ESHE
the other four (2009: four) individuals are as follows: ATHBS@ERHN T
2009
$000
Fr
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e REREAMER 4,702
Retirement scheme contributions SRR EIERR 48
4,750
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments (continved) 8 BEEME&AL
The emoluments of the four (2009: four) individuals with the ZOE(ZEEAF BB RSMEALH
highest emoluments are within the following bands: MesHwmT -

Number of individuals

A

2009

$Nil - $1,000,000 Zx - 1,000,000 7T
$1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1,000,001 7Tt - 1,500,000 7T

9 (Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders 9 ZARBREKE.(EE) B
of the Company

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity ANARREEREE(BR) BNEE—
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of 583,336,000 tHBR(ZETNEF :
$3,336,000 (2009: profit of $16,834,000) which has 16,834,000 T &F) - thBHEERA LR
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. RS I|MRAEH R IR -

10 Dividends 10 KR
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (o) AFEEFEARARROKRE :

Company attributable to the year:

2009
$'000
T
Final dividend proposed after the balance RZEHERBERZD RARPKRE
sheet date of 4.85 cents per share BR485ML(ZEENEF :
(2009: 1.41 cents per share) BR1.4140) 14,063
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet REFRREZRD KN RAKRES L AR
date has not been recognised as a liability at the HEBERRAR -

balance sheet date.
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10 Dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous year, approved
and paid during the year:

]O Eﬁl%\{ &)
(b) ERFAMAERKENLFERNSEA
ARRKE :

2009
$'000
Tt

Final dividend in respect of the previous ERFERRERIKEN E—§
financial year, approved and paid HEERBMBREER
during the year, of 1.41 cents per share TA4M{I(=ZZZEF

(2009: 5.00 cents per share) B 5.0010L)

14,063 49,868

11 (Loss)/earnings per share

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
is based on the loss atiributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $61,641,000 (2009:
profit of $14,016,000) and the weighted average of
997,365,332 ordinary shares (2009: 997,365,332

ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009.

12 Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments.

Hong Kong: Provision of media sales and management
services

Mainland China: Provision of media advertising agency
services and design and production of

advertisements

There are no sales between the reportable segments.
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12 Segment reporting (confinved)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's most
senior executive management monitors the results aftributable
fo each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment assefs and liabilities include all current and non-
current assefs and liabilities, respectively, which are directly
managed by the segments.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments for
the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 is set out
below.

(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities:

Hong Kong

BB

2010

$'000
i

Revenue from external customers

HEBARE b
net income FH 9,266

Other revenue and other

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment ERAPERA/

Inferest income FIEWA -
Depreciation and amortisation KEEHER

for the year 5
Impairment loss of media assets REEEAESE
Impairment loss of accounts receivable ElRTAESE
Impairment loss of other non-current Bt FRBERMER

financial assets RERR =
Reportable segment assets EHAVEE 454,685
Additions fo non-current segment assets ~ FRIFERE L PEE

during the year i 35,957
Reportable segment liabilities EEAHER 69,969

12 93| E 4

RESNHEPHRA 324,060 194,082

0N 333,326 202,635

profit/(loss) (E8) 59,206

470,611

46,511

BRABERERA A —E-BEFHR

bl

RGO BRERDESBERME + &%
EeeMTREBRABEUNTEEESRRE
WO IMRIELE -

BARZHDESERS S BELNHERD
HEEHBAELNL L REEH B (A
EFERBHEMIBNTEIREZHS
# -

DEHEERABIHBEME RS RIERD
EERAE HEHIPEEEE -

BE_Z-ZFR_ZFNF+_A=1+—
EIJtiE AEEE2ROBERFINWT -

(o) 2EHMABYA » BRAREE  EERE
& :

Mainland China Total
R B K B BT

2010 2010

$'000 ' $'000

i i
1,171 2,279 EEYEFE] 196,361

1,866 2,302 11,132

3,037 336,363

(115,893) (56,687)

30 30

10,855
207,216

6,335 9,724
171 -
318 10

110,000 9,801 110,000 9,801
268,775 371,666 | KL 842,277

34 739 35,991 11,021
71,088 49,699
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12 Segment reporting (confinved)

12 BEHE )

(b) The Group’s revenue to external customers included in
reportable segment revenue is equal to consolidated
turnover and the Group’s reportable segment liabilities
are equal to consolidated total liabilities. Reconciliations
of reportable segment profit or loss and assets are as

P.94

follows:

(b) AEMAHAZHIBRANIIEEF K
AEERGAREXE MARENER
ITHMEERERGEAELTE - 28D
BENREEREEHRMNT ¢

2010 2009
$/000 $7000
T F
Profit or loss BRREE
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 2HHB(BE) BF (56,687) 19,662
Unallocated other revenue and other net ROMEMBAR
income Hh 5 F 58 20,081 15,923
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBERSER
expenses ¥R (12,280) (12,911)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation  #R&BF AT (EE) BF| (48,886) 22,674
2010 2009
$/000 $7000
T Fr
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets 2RIMBEE 723,460 842,277
Other non-current financial assets HihERsemEE 82,470 16,043
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBMREER
assets TEEE 826 546
Consolidated total assets HREEERAE 806,756 858,866




BABERERAA —E-BEFHR
13 Fixed assets 13EEEE
The Group
K%M
Avdio Hardware Furniture
and visual and and leasehold Motor
equipment software fixtures improvements vehicles Total
EAE S BRERRA BRREE BENERE "B h
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T R T
Cost: BA:
At 1 Jonuary 2009 RZZENE-A-A 185,497 1,513 735 - 2,287 190,032
Additions hE 8,482 842 659 1,038 - 11,021
Disposcl 4 29.22) - ) - - (29,230)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENETZA=T-A 164,757 2,355 1,386 1,038 2,287 171,823
At 1 Jonuary 2010 RZE-Z5-F-8 164,757 171,823
Exchange adjustments Eif% - 130
Additions e 365 1,303
Disposal HE (567) (1,561)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-BF+ZA=1-A 164,555 1,438 171,695
The Group
158
Audio Hardware Furniture
and visual and and Leasehold Motor
equipment soffware fixtures ~ improvements vehicles Tofal
FERE BRRAA BRRZE BEVES: "B h
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T n T o T
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZiHTER
impairment losses: HEFE:
At T January 2009 RZZENE-A-A 174,925 1,169 540 - 1,543 178,177
Charge for the year FRfE 8,444 191 310 259 265 9,469
Written back on disposal HEREE 29,222) - (8) - - (29,230)
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAE+TZA=T-8 154,147 1,360 842 259 1,808 158,416
At T January 2010 R-2-2%5-f-H 154,147 158,416
Exchange adjustmens ERHE - 99
Charge for the year ERTE 4,512 6,293
Written back on disposal HERER (567) (1,519)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZF+ZB=1-4 158,092 163,289
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2010 R-E-EE+-F=1-H 6,463 8,406
At 31 December 2009 RZZENETZA=T-A 10,610 995 544 779 479 13,407
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14 Media assets 14 BBEE

The Group
REE

Cost: RN :

At 1 January ®—A—H

Exchange adjustments EXRAE

At 31 December R+=B=+—H

Accumulated amortisation: RETEe

At 1 January R—A—H

Exchange adjustments BE 5 R

Amortisation for the year F R

Impairment loss MEEE

At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8H

Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December R+=A=+—8H

15Non-current and current prepayments 15 kRBERBFEANKE

Non-current and current prepayments consist of deposits FRBEABRNFACEBEEATEEDN
for purchase of fixed assets and advance payments for BReRE_ZZ_FE_T-—_FHEARE
concession and rights for advertising and media programme EERLEEBREGNES KR EE
placement on fransit vehicles and transit network furniture PR TEN R - ZEHIAY EBHL R
for periods from 2002 to 2012. The amounts are neither g -

past due nor impaired.

16 Investments in subsidiaries 16 B LARKRE

The Company

RAH
2010 2009
$’000 $'000
T F
Unlisted shares, at cost FEmRMG  RE 62,835 62,835
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries. TREIMBERRNESR - KR BRI
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. P #E AR £ $E 51115 B B AR -
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Fir A B B R B4 R M RE 1 () T JE 8 B A
MEBAR  EXECHALREERBERERA

pALE

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under
note 1(c) and have been consolidated into the Group's

financial statements.

Particulars of

wRE Al

Attributable equity

Place of issued and paid interest (%)
incorporation/ up capital EERE(ED L)
Name of company operation B2ETR direct indirect Principal activity
AEEE AR EEE CHRBRAFE EE & TEEH
AdSociety Advertising Agency ~ Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B BE2T RERR
AIEEBREEERAR
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin Us$100 - 60 Provision of media sales service
Islands/Hong Kong 100£7 for advertising on transit vehicle
REELHE/ B shelters
RURESHREZEEN
REHERS
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of media sales service
] BEIT for advertising on transit vehicle
exteriors
RURESHESHBESEN
REHERS
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Holder of the registered design
Islands/ Hong Kong [ and patent in relation to cyber
RERLHES/BH bus stops
FEEHREE LU NEmERE
REA
Expert Plus Holdings Limited The British Virgin us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong S RERR
RBRLEE /&
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
i #%#10,000 T EEEX
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
BB ##10,000 T TEEX
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
i BE2T EEEX
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16 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 16 B ARKRE
Particulars of Attributable equity
Place of issued and paid interest (%)
incorporation/ up capital EEREED L)
Name of company operation BEITR direct indirect Principal activity
RNEER SRR EEBY BARRAFE Ef & TEEH
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
B B2 BEBTRoMBEEY
RoadShow Advertising (Beijing) ~ The PRC US$500,000 - 100 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited FEl 500,000% agency service and design and
(limited liability company) production of advertisements
BABES (LR BRAF REFEEEERBRER
(AREEAT) EERTRRE
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
B8 B2 KEBIRenEEEN
RoadShow Media Holdings The British Virgin us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands/ Hong Kong [ESS REER
RERLEE /&
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of media sales &
i B2 management services for
advertising on fransit vehicle
inferiors and for BUS-TV
business
REREEHERAN
BEUARETEREKN
HEHEREERY
RoadShow Productions Holdings  The British Virgin Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands/ Hong Kong [EFH REER
RERLEE/BE
RoadShow Productions Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Events production and
B B2 production of content for
BUS-TV systems
ERHERHABLER
RoadShow Resources Limited The British Virgin Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong [ES REER

REELRE/BE
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Particulars of

Attributable equity

Place of issued and paid inferest (%)
incorporation/ up capital EEREED L)
Name of company operation BEITR direct indirect Principal activity
REER ERAL EE Y CHRRAHE B & TEXH
RoadVision Holdings (China) The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands/ Hong Kong S REER
REELHE/ B
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong 2% REZR
REELHE/BH
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong [EFH REER
RERLHES/BH
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited ~ The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/ Hong Kong 1%7% RERR
RERLBE /B
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of employment agency
0 B2 services
REBERNRE
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 95 Dormant
& &#10,000 7T EEegx
Shanghai Yingte Consulting The PRC RMB1,236,000 - 68 Investment holding
Company Limited (sino- HE AR®1,236,000 T REER
foreign co-operative joint
venture)
LEEREABRLA
(POEEEERE)
Shanghai Yafei Advertising The PRC RMB600,000 - 51 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited HE AR 600,000 agency service and design and

(limited liability company)
IEDRESERAT
(BREFLE)

production of advertisements
REFRESKERER
EERH
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16 Investments in subsidiaries (continved)

Particulars of

16 ﬁ?%’&ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ

Attributable equity

Place of issued and paid interest (%)
incorporation/ up capital EEREED L)
Name of company operation BETR direct indirect Principal activity
ARBHE MR S E EHRRAFEE Ef & TEEK
Beijing Ding Yi Tang Artiste The PRC RMB500,000 - 100 Provision of arfiste agency
Management Co., Ltd. HE AR# 500,000 service
(limited liability company RS ALEARK
(wholly-owned by legal
person)
ERGEZESLLBRAT
(EREADACEABE))
17 Other non-current financial assets
17 EiERBEREE
The Group
REE
2010 2009
$/000 $000
T Fr
Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at BERAVRNFE ETmARBEE
cost B 23,570 133,570
Loans to investee BREATER 97,218 69,884
Amount due from investee FEWAE IR E A AR 15,882 12,167
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value BRAABEIIEMAIHEERE
(listed outside Hong Kong) BES(FBRIILD) 82,470 16,043
219,140 231,664
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at cost

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group's
investment in an unlisted investee was classified as
available-for-sale equity interest as the Group does not
have significant influence over the investee.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, available-for-sale
equity securities were individually determined to be
impaired on the basis of an adverse change in the
market in which the investee operated which indicated
that the Group’s investment in the investee may not be
fully recovered. Impairment loss on unlisted available-
for-sale equity interest of $110,000,000 (2009:
$9,801,000) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2010.

Loans to investee

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, loans to investee
were unsecured, carried interest ranging from 5.31%
to 7.47% p.a. and were not expected to be settled
within one year. The loans were neither past due nor
impaired.

Amount due from investee

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, amount due from
investee was unsecured, interest free and had no fixed
repayment terms, but was not expected fo be recovered
within one year. The amount was neither past due nor
impaired.

Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value
The listed debt securities are issued by corporate entities
with credit ratings ranging from A- to AA+.

The available-for-sale debt securities are due for
repayment in 2014 or 2015.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BRAFIRNE LT AEHERE
RZE-—TFEFR_ZFTNF+ZH
=t+—H BREEBEHFEEREDAN
FEVAEX AEBERFLTHEE
RAMZEER DB R EMRE -

RZE—ZTFR_ZFTAF+_A
=+—H AHEEREREREZER
AR EMEMSENAIFEHBRAEER
RIEHRE R E R E A ge T ee 2 &kl
mEREE & LIREE - 3ELmAftH
SR EEBE 110,000,000 =
ZZTAF 9,801,000 ) REE-ZF
—ZFE+ A=+ —BAILFERBEE
‘;7\;{[,

WHREATDERK
RZE—ZSEFR=_ZFTZTNLEFE+=A
=t+—H WEREAGDERAEER .
REFNKSINBE7A7%E L &
HAER—FAREE ZFERLER
Hig B RE °

EWREiREQARE
RZE—ZFR-_ZTZTNLF+=A
=+—H  ERHEEEQRFELER
B SEREERTERDE EEHTE
N—FAKE o ZF AW &8 Bk IR
RE °
RAAREBEIENTHEEEEES
FHEBEFAEETANTA- EAAL
B FEEB BT -

AHLEEBESFON _FT—HFH_
Z-HFIHER -
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18 Inventories 18 #&
All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise and EFEOREMEK S XEHTR—F
are expected to be recovered within one year. A e
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as BARXENFESEAT :
follows:
The Group
AEE
2009
$000
Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEREE 5,768
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMRRED (263)
5,505

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior
years arose due fo an increase in the estimated net
realisable value of inventories.

19 Amounts due from/(to) group companies

(a) The amount due from ultimate holding company is
unsecured, interestfree and has no fixed terms of
repayment. The amount is neither past due nor impaired.

(b) The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(c) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interestfree and have no fixed terms of repayment but
are not expected to be repaid within twelve months of
the balance sheet date. The amounts are neither past
due nor impaired.

(d) The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and
represents normal trade receivables and payables. The
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are neither past
due nor impaired.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

RRSKEERARFERERT 28
KRB TE & N o SX AR B A SR
& o

ENHBARRERERR 2ERE

EEMMBARFAREERR RENE
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ARER - ZEFBLEBHRAE -

e (FE) R R B 2 R FRIR R K
W28 AREREEE RFk—
RE SRR ENRR - ZFRUR %
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20 Accounts receivable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable that
is neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired at the balance sheet date are as follows:

BABERERAR —E-BEFHR

20 B AR

REER - 3 8 R R R & BB ER K
BRANREDITFEBOT

The Group
REE
2010 2009
$7000 $'000
T Fr

Neither past due nor impaired 3 4% 361 B SR (B
Less than one month past due BHOR—EA
One to two months past due BH—ZmEA
Two to three months past due BHEME=EA

BEEB=EA

More than three months past due

40,769 34,068
20,291 16,836
9,696 7,006
4,228 3,629
3,318 2,931

78,302 64,470

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered
within one year.

Impairment loss is written off against accounts receivable
when the recovery of the amount is remote. At 31 December
2010, the Group's accounts receivable of $318,000
(2009: $10,000) was individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that all of their receivables are not expected to be
recovered. Consequently, an impairment loss is provided for
and written off against the accounts receivable directly. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
fo a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group's credit policy is set out in note 27(a) to the
financial statements.

BEHE RUERA R —FAKE -

HRRESBERE TR R EEERE YRR
AR  R=ZFE—FTF+=-_A=1+—H"
AEBEWEKREKER318,000T(ZEF A
F:10,000) BRI EEAEBEERE- @
AR (B A i U SR IB T B BE A B R R 2R ) & P
B MERETERBEENEEWRIE
HAREEME o B - 5T IR IR E R I U
BRRPEEME AEEYRFEAZRSEH
RS o

I &8 B OB B MY B OB T R 2 2 iRl I
BRERTENEFER -

EEHBERNENERFIATDEE TRAE
ERARMERCHNELEFAR - RE
BERLR  EEERFENZZEBNEER
HRPREABANE - REAFEBDKR
RAEEBEE - WBARZEEHRELRE
B o

ARENEERRERMBRRME27(a)
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21 Pledged bank deposits

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between subsidiaries
of the Company and fellow subsidiaries, the subsidiaries
have provided bank guarantees in favour of the fellow
subsidiaries regarding the subsidiaries’ due performance
and payment under the respective licence agreements. The
Company has pledged bank deposits of $41,200,000
(2009: $51,200,000) to banks for the bank guarantees
issued.

22 Bank deposits and cash

21 EERRITER

i3 ANy =INCTEEIEESE )= PN ETRvA: Y
ETHIEDGS  HBLARCHEZERT
EXNREEBEAEBZTOEETRK
B FRAZSEREAMBARI RIS ANR
THRE ARERABELNRITERRAR
TERRITERA1,200,000L(ZFZT A
% :51,200,0007T) °

2 BITERREAS

The Group The Company
REE ANRFE]

Cash at bank and in hand RITERRES

Bank deposits with original REBBEH
maturities within three ZEARK

months RITER 46,886

Cash and cash equivalents REHBEERERM

for the purpose of cash ENRERRES

flow statement B9 141,036
Bank deposits with REHBEA

original maturities BE=EAN

over three months RITER 242,485
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173,041 35,046 122,191
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BRABERERA A —E-2EFR

23 IR
REHA  EREROERRDMEFNT :

23 Accounts payable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

The Group
A%
2009
$'000
Fr
4,931

Due within one month —1{& B REIH

BHRERMNERTR —FASM -

All of the accounts payable are expected to be seftled

within one year.

24 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet 24 IR EEERABRNFEH
(a) IIRGEEEEBRNAHHES :

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet

represents:
The Group
REE
2009
$'000
Fr
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax AEEEBREH
for the year BHE 3,502
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EHFIEH (2,222)
1,280
PRC income tax payable B FTEH 401
1,681
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24 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets/|(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

4 IRGEEERBERNABH

(b) ERIBEEHRBEE (AE)
GAAERBRACHANELCHEER
E/(BBE)NERBORNRFANZSD

movements during the year are as follows: LU
The Group
rKE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of related
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
HEAETE
MiTEE R BBEE Hith #st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At 1 January 2009 R-ZThE—A—A (1,718) 6,357 (707) 3,932
Credited/(charged) to EERAFTA
profit or loss /(%) 312 (1,732) 717 (703)
At 31 December 2009 RZZZNF
+ZA=+—H (1,406) 4,625 10 3,229
At 1 January 2010 R-E-2E-A-A (1,406)
Credited/(charged) to HEBERFTA
profit or loss /(H%) 678
At 31 December 2010 R-Z2-ZF
+=B=+-8 (728)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet:

REEBEEABRRERNTE

The Group
REE
2009
$7000
F

Net deferred tax assets RIEREEEFEE
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIEAEFEE

3,802
(573)

3,229
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24 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(m), the Group and the Company have not
recognised deferred tax assets of $11,128,000 (2009:
$10,400,000) and $8,574,000 (2009: $7,575,000)
in respect of cumulative tax losses of $66,278,000
(2009: $61,937,000) and $51,962,000 (2009:
$45,907,000), respectively, as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. The tax losses do not expire under the
current tax legislation except for an amount of the
Group of $2,265,000 (2009: $2,127,000) which will

expire in the coming five years.

25 Equity settled shared-based transactions

The Company has a share optfion scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 7 June 2001 whereby the Directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, fo take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 6 June 2011,

No options were granted during the year and there were
no outstanding options at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

BABERERAR —E-BEFHR

4 RGEEERBRNAER ¢

(c) REDBNELEREEE :
ARIRFEE 1 (m) BB G ETECR - R A
MG EDEEE R BB AR AL HIR A A)
KHBENRRERT BN MAKER
RN 566,278,000 (= F
ZAF :61,937,0007T ) & 51,962,000
T(ZZZ N F:45907,0007T ) 8y &
A EIRER1,128000L(Z 2 E
7 £ 10,400,0007T ) % 8,574,000 7T
(ZZZNEF:7,5750007 ) 69T 7
REE - RBBERBRITREED L E
BB HEEF 2265000 (ZZZ N
% 1 2,127,000 D) SRR RF AER °

25 LR EBENNRORZ
AR RRAE —BBRE (T )) - &
HER-ZT-FRXACBERM - Hut
ARANEEERETHEAFAEBES
(BEAEEEMARNES)ERT BB
RERG O ERE - SRBBRER FRBA
RE-BRARRLBROER - ZHBOE
BHATE R-T——FXAXAER

FRAYTERIERE TR -_FT-—FTFR=
ETNET_A=1T—8  BEEAMRTE
f R AR HE -
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26 Capital and reserves

(a) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

26 BARMEESR
(o) MZARBHWRH

FEEFEAERSAEKE Y B EAR
BHRNEEENGAREEHR - AR
A& ERSAKBIRAFEERI R
RENESFREHINMT :

out below:
The Company EAN T
Share Share Contributed Retained
capital premium surplus profits Total
e RiVEE B4ER REBT &zt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T 7 i i
Balance at 1 January 2009 R-ZZhF-B-BHEH 99,737 531,769 62,635 58,116 752,257
Changes in equity for 2009: —ESAEREHEH:
Total comprehensive income REE2ENE
for the year et - - - 16,834 16,834
Dividends approved in respect of AELEEEHEMN
the previous year RE (49,868 (49,868
Balance at 31 December RZBEAFTZAZT-BR
2009 and 1 January 2010 —Z-ZF-F-HNEH 531,769 AL YK]
Changes in equity for 2010: —E-ZREEHEH:
Total comprehensive income REE2ENE
for the year ag (3,336) (3,336)
Dividends approved in respect of BB LEEEHEMN
the previous year RE (14,063) (14,063)

Balance at 31 December RZE-BE+ZA=+-HM
2010 <33

99,737
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26 Capital and reserves

2010

(continued)
(b) Share capital
Number
of shares
g 4!
000
TR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 BRO.1TH
each ZER 10,000,000
Issued and fully BBRTR
paid: 28R
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+-—H 997,365

(c)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
fo one vote per share at general meefings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company's residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by sections 150 and 157 of the
Company's Articles of Association and the Bermuda

Companies Act 1981.

General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries of 10% of their net profit after tax,
based on the subsidiary's PRC statutory financial
statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up capital
of the respective subsidiary.

BRABERERA A

1,000,000

(c)

26 BARMEHEE
(b) B

gl
g
bS)

—E-2EFR

o

2009

Number

of shares

RDEE
000 $000
TR Fr
10,000,000 1,000,000
997,365 99,737

B A ANEREEBAEE IR K
YERRRARRBRRAG LERA

—BREONKR—FR - mAEAKREARE
MABEEMS DFERSEa -

RETHHEERAR
(i) KRR

(ii)

B EBERNERXARRAEZE
RAREISORIS7GRARE
NN RBEEIRR

—Ri#E

AEBEXPEME QR BREM
BRAMPEEEMNBHRRTER
BRELEAEFIE 10% BA —MREEE -

—RERBTBREBEEARFER

FEREBRANME R RNEBER
K o
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(c) Nature and purpose of reserves [continued)
(iii) Contributed surplus

P.110

Pursuant fo a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange under the reorganisation in 2001
was fransferred to contributed surplus. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
is available for distribution to shareholders.

(iv) Other reserve

(v)

In 2007, the Group entered info an agreement with
a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8%
equity interests in o subsidiary, KM-Vision Llimited
at a consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a
premium of $605,000. The additional investment
was accounted for as an equity transaction and the
premium was recognised directly in the shareholders’

equity.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of availableforsale debt
securities held at the balance sheet date and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(d).

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1{r).

(vii)Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was $70,318,000 (2009:
$87,717,000). After the balance sheet date,
the Directors proposed a final dividend of 4.85
cents per ordinary share (2009: 1.41 cents per
ordinary share), amounting to $48,372,000 (2009:
$14,063,000) [note 10(a)). The final dividend has
not been recognised as a liability af the balance
sheet date.

(c) RBEEHMHERAR(E)
(iii) BE#EE

BE-FT-FHREEE KD
ARAKEEGRRAT - HAK
EFERGEABRG BRARA
R-TT—FREEMHEEHS
MRANRBEE - KSRHBEE
AESBS - REFHE NN\
HATVDAE  RARBTEEY
TR -

(iv)] Bt @

(v)

REER_ZTETZLFH-FZR
M B AR FEi —EHiB&E N
1,211,000 &9 X B W g E R
B B 2 AKM-Vision Llimited
BREBUHRE  FMEEEEB AR
605,000t © LB INE B T bA
mRX P REEERRREER
RER -

AAEEFE
AABEREEERNGEEARARN
AHHERBEFAABENRG
BE)FE WRRHE (LRSS
AR -

(vi) SHEFE

SNERERBMERTBIAINERH
BHRREENAAELEZRE - %F
R R BRI A 1 (r) PR B & AT R
BRI o

(vii) (& & #9 7 7 R 1

RZE—ZTF+ZA=+—H 7
DRTARARRNBFEESBE
%70,318,000t(Z & T j1LF :
87,717 000L) - 58 R%& =
ERBRERAREGERT AR
485M( =TT NF: GREB
B&1.411L) - B8 A& 48,372,000
T(ZZEZNF : 14,063,0007T)
(M3 10(a)) - REERB - KRHERK
B RBERABBE -



(d) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are fo safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group did
not have any bank borrowings. The Group had bank
deposits and cash balance as at 31 December 2010
amounting fo $383,521,000 (2009: $447,934,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arising from the normal course of its business.
These risks are limited by the Group's financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables and listed
debt securities. The Group has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
info for long ferm strategic purposes. Given the high
credit standing of the counterparties, management does
not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

(d) EXxEE

$%I%I¥§$E’J§%§E%Bﬁ<ﬁ$$%

REABERBERENRN  RMEB
Eﬁiﬂ 2K FHRSENERKRREEE -
LA&ZE%(:.\EE}?XZKE’MQQ BERER
RUEMBLAEMESHE S ERHER

ZS o

BX

—ZFER-_ZEZAF+ A
CAEEY EEMRITEE ©
N_E-ZFE+_HA=+—80K
R RFB LR/ 383,521,000
ZTNGF : 447,934,0007T) °

A=+
ﬁm\w
m

b= I A4
T ai

ARBEEBEEHEEBEARBRERAR
A RERE  NERSBRRERER T
REENRSEEKFERFNERR
AHERNBEE RREZHRGFE - X
FAEGCERENECHERRBIELS

E °

AEBENREEBRRCELRFEE RPE

KA

CHEREREERR  ZERBRE MRS

B E R BR LB DIR A o

(a)

FERE
AEEWEERR 2K B EWREN
Eﬁﬂlﬂ&ﬁﬁ &J:rhf BEZ e Zli‘il
RE-BEEERER Y ERHEEREL
FEERR -

—MimE  AEEERRARERS M
ETRBEAKREMEAREREAM
RIERN) ERHEEFARS
EEBEY A ARBEIAMREAFHIGREE
BITEE -
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(a)

(b)

P.112

Credit risk (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Customers of media sales business are generally
granted credit terms of 90 days while customers of
merchandising business either pay on delivery or are
generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
cusfomers.

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or
better than the Group. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any licensed bank to fail
fo meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of the respective assets in
the balance sheet. The Group has not provided any
guarantee which would expose the Group or the
Company fo credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure fo credit risk arising from accounts receivable
are set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company's Board of
Directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group's policy
is regularly to monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of its
subsidiaries. Generally, the Company's subsidiaries are
required fo obtain the Company’s approval for activities
such as investment of surplus cash, raising of loans and
settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond certain limits.

(a)

(b)

FERE(E)

ARBHPAERBREE TEHREER
BEFPETEBEENL - A&E—RE
THREHEXKNEFOOREEH
MmEmHEXEBNEP AR MK
—REHLTIOEVENEERA A
Bk - REE-RTERE P WK

[
[s[alig

ROIFFRBITRE-REFHNEE
FERBEENHBR AR EOFFERTT -
EREGEFERR  EEEALTES
ERFERITEBEEETER °

EREERRAREEABERABEMEE
MREE - ASEYEREEFMTES
AKEHIARAHBEERRNER -

AEBEREBEUERNEERROAR
ERRME201EE— S BE -

RBESER
AEBEHETHEBLCLERAEER SN
RE2EE BRESEFTAREEYN
BeFmf HEXSRBEEERNE
THEEKF  AEAESARRESEEN
- ARENRRATHERER
EeFRE URFREASTHORSH
BRETECHBBERERANARE
TRE BREREHNRDEELR
o

ARRANENEREMBLRNRER
B —RME ARENKHBLRER
NREBRERE BEEERRFHE
BETELROREBRERZEHNERN
NEHLE



27 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk [continued)

(c)

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which are
required to be repaid within one year or on demand
amounted to $62,652,000 (2009: $47,445,000) and
$238,586,000 (2009: $234,817,000) respectively.

Interest rate risk

It is the Group's policy to monitor market conditions
closely and devise suitable strategies against interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews its strategy
on interest rate risk management in the light of the
prevailing market condition.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s and the Company’s interest bearing
assefs and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

BRABERERA A —E-2EFR

27 BEBEERAABE:

(b) RBES R (E)
REER  AEERARRRNFTES
BEBEER-FALANBREER)
EDH/62,652,000L(ZFEEN
% :47,445,0007T) % 238,586,000
T(ZZZNF : 234,817,0007T) °

=R
AEENBRERENERMHEMNR - U
EREEHMERRNEERE - A%
BREZEENTSMAN - ERRTEN
KERERKE o

(c)

(i) FIFE@RBEHE
TRANAEERARRANEER
M REERBBEMNNEHEE -

2010 2009
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BREFE BRFR=E
% $000
BAtk Tr
The Group S 3]
Fixed rate assets: EZEFIEEE -
Other non-current HtndERE
financial assets SREE
— loans to investee — WREQATAER 97,218 58 69,884
— available-for-sale — AHHE
debt securities BEREE 82,470 5.0 16,043
Bank deposits (including  #RITER(EHEL
pledged deposits) ERER) 330,571 0.9 420,188
510,259 506,115
Variable rate assets: EEFIFLE :
Cash at bank RITRE 53,381 0.3 65,110
The Company EAH
Fixed rate assets: EEFEEE -
Bank deposits (including  $RITER(EHELE
pledged deposits) EHRER) 224,011 0.6 318,489
Variable rate assets: FEFELE :
Cash at bank RITRE 8,756 0.1 320
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(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

P.114

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's loss
after tax and increased/decreased the Group's
retained profits by approximately $477,000 (2009:
increased/decreased the Group's profit after tax
and retained profits by approximately $533,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would
have decreased/increased by approximately

$2,619,000 (2009: $633,000) in response to the

general increase/decrease in interest rafes.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss/profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred af
the balance sheet date and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value inferest
rate risk at the balance sheet date. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by
the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the Group's loss/profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated equity
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

(c) R=RABR(E)
(ii) BEESH

RZZT—ZTF+=-A=+—R0 &
AT R R 42 R 2 100 (8 &
BHoOBRMBHMEBEELFTE
AEEMBRRIZBERRD,EN
EAEEORZBNEEN R
D 8477,000 (= T F N F -
AEBHOBBEENRKRE RF
o , m > #533,0007T) o F
RKERLEA /THRKGEEREA
T =5 6 H A A0 AR BB 4R R 442
#12,619,000L(= T T h &
633,0007T) °

BLREHEECRAEEHMTER
SEMFeRITA(STEENG
BRAEHAABENERAR) A
AEENBRRERER/ BM(RRF
BARF) KRG S E b HEK S
DHEBENANEES - HFREAE
EREEEMBAEBMEITE
TRMIAMELNBRERENXR
g HASBERBRER/ B
(RREBEN)RGA#ESNHE A
REBD MR E - AN EZEHF B
WA ERCREERREE - 217
HEEE-TTNFHMANHER -
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 BXEREERAAEBE®

(continued)

(d) Currency risk
The following table details the Group's and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2010

uUsD
EP
HK$’000
BET T

The Group rEE

Other non-current financial ~ E#tFE7RE

assets TREE 168,506
Bank deposits and cash RITERRES 194,126
362,632

The Company A
Bank deposits and cash BITEREERES 187,798

In addition, the Group is exposed fo currency risk
arising from inter-company receivables and payables
denominated in Renminbi which is not the functional
currency of either the lender or the borrower.
The net inter-company receivables amounted to
RMB123,734,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009:
RMB124,557,000).

(d) E¥ER

TRAVNAEB R AR EEERARE
N EB N BB REMIIENEER
BERNEEAMARENERRR -

SRR
(RAEBHE)
2009

RMB usb RMB
ARH B ARH
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT BETT BET T
27,064 98,094 -
- 309,560 -
27,064 407,654 -
306,497 -

Boh - REBEEmEHUAAREGEERS
RERDHONEEE) IR R EHEE
WM EMNERRAEENEERER
RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H  2FAH
FEd B FE R AR 123,734,000
T(ZZZNF : AR¥ 124,557,000
L) °

P.115



RoadShow Holdings Limited

2010 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RIE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEETIN  HRBEHE)

27 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

P.116

The following table indicates how an appreciation in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar at the balance
sheet date would have affected the Group's results for
the year and other components of equity.

2010
Decrease in
loss for
Increase  the year and
in foreign increase
exchange in retained
rate profits
KEE
Ex BROEIR
Biam  REERNHEM
$/000
Tr

The Group r5E

Renminbi N 5,215

A weakening in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar by
the same percentage at the balance sheet date would
have had an equal but opposite effect on the Group's
results for the year.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the linked rafe between the Hong Kong
dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the
United States dollar against other currencies. Results of
the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ results affer tax and equity measured in their
respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong dollar af the exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet date for presentation purposes. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis as for 2009.

27 BEERBREERAABE®

(d) E¥mEE ()

Effect on
other

components

of equity

Bt
AN

74
$7000
i

TRETREERARKE BRSO HE
SYEASENAFREEREMES
AR ER D ©

2009

Increase in
Increase profit for Effect on
in foreign the year other
exchange  and retained components
rafe profits of equity
REE HHMLER
Ex BARRE ARBHH
Higm BERlrEn vE
§000 §'000
T Tr
3% 4,245 -

WARBLEENERNEERAER
BOLTR ABARKSENKRFEREE
EERASEERNTZE -

BRENMDBREXZCERLEER
B4 UYRARENAELAKERFEN
ZEERTA MZEIASAEER
FEAEHINERR  BEREEARA
BABER T HERTNEEEUINE
B OB M B BR R R B R X - RIS R
ERMEEMEHR(LERANE)ERFT
Zopits  AERERKRETLEM

THBBREXELEATE - LRI
PMERREAEEEEENFANUE
M ERAENRBRFARERNE
ARE YCHREEAMBITERLR
RETREZIN AR - PHEER_F
ThEMBNER -



(d) E¥EE &)
ARBYFAIZ2EHLBRNEE - f
BERARBHIINER ZEHLABBT
BARRITAEMERERETINEOH

(d) Currency risk (continued)
Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or other

institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies. BEST -
(e) Fair values (e) DAEE
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair valve (i) BAAEBEIRYEHTA

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, require
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of
financial instruments across three levels of a “fair
value hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is cafegorised in ifs entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

- Llevel 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted] in active
markets for identical financial instruments

- level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation fechniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

- level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant
input is not based on observable market data

At 31 December 2010, the only financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value were
available-for-sale debt securities of $82,470,000
(2009: $16,043,000) (see note 17). These
instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

(BEMBHREERDE 7RI
TR RFIBKBIBIAAEE
ERRBIBREEHRITANR
REEFE BSREBRIANIA
EEERRBEUHZAAEENES
EARENRESRBABETD
B REERRENT

- FI&(EBER)  KAMER
TRMIANERTSRECK
BRAB)AENAREE

- F2H - RARESRIAN
ERMEREXRBAEEER
WAEDEEABREKEAE
EMBEBENEERTEN
DRBE

- BEIR(REEHR) - KAEM
ERHABYFKEABRED
LEENHERMTENAR

B
W-F—FF+-A=+—0  #%HE
BAREENRSHE -SRI ARTH

:16,043,000) (R M eE17) - 3%
TABREARABESRRENSE
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 EBEERAARBE®

(continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)
(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value
All financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2010 and
2009 except as follows:

(1) Amounts due from/to ultimate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries and investee
of the Group and the Company are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
Given these terms it is not meaningful to disclose
their fair values.

(2) Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest of
$23,570,000 (2009: $133,570,000) does
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and therefore its fair value could not
be reliably measured. It was stated at cost less
impairment losses at the balance sheet date.

(f) Estimation of fair values
Fair values of listed availablefor-sale debt securities are
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date without any deduction for transaction costs.

le) RAEEE)
(ii) EHZEALEBEINENEHBI ALY
AREE
FiT 7 122 B 7R ok B S8 B AN DI BR B0 &
TAREERN -_T—TER_-FT
ThE+-_A=+—HANALEE
HET KOS EIE - T ER
N

(1) B/ ENAKERAREN
ERERAR AREMNE R
A MBRARERERAR
EREEMR 2R NEREE
B ERNUREHRR KEH
RABEEEIKA -

2) 3k £/ AT /B E K2
23,570,000 t(ZZEZ N4
133,570,000 7T ) 3t #& & 88
BHE WEDABETEER
SAtE - ERNEEHERAR
EREBRERIE -

() DAEEMMEE
EHAHEERBESHIABEDR
BREE TR TS RE (LR
RPUAE)ETE °

28 Commitments 28 HEiE

(a) Capital commitments
At 31 December 2010, the Group had the following
capital commitments in relation to the purchase of fixed
assets not provided for in the financial statements:

(a) BAXREE
N-T—FTFE+-H=+—0 A~&£HE
BT HEBERTEERBNE REE
W AR IR A B

2010 2009
$/000 $'000
SEom T

Contracted for E%IT4[
Authorised but not contracted for BMEBNRBITENE

30,191 —
111,006 173,000

141,197 173,000
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28 Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

(c)

At 31 December 2010, the Group's total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of property and equipment are payable as
follows:

28 &L @)

BRABERERA A —E-2EFR

pil

(b) REHERE

R-ZBE—FBFE+_A=+—8 ' A&£H
REEEMERIENT A FHLCER
ERMNARZEASEEHT

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

— R
—EREEER

2010 2009
$/000 $000
T FT
5,861 6,438
12,823 14,879
18,684 21,317

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. The leases do notf include
any contingent rentals.

Other commitments

Certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media sales
management services for BUS-TV business, [(ii) to
conduct media sales agency and management business
on selected bus shelters, and [(iii] to solicit advertising
business in respect of the interior and exterior panels
of buses operated by The Kowloon Motor Bus (1933)
Company Llimited ["KMB") have been granted to the
Group, and the respective licences will expire in periods
ranging from 2012 to 2014. Under such licences, the
Group has committed to pay licence fees or royalty fees
at a pre-defermined percentage of the net advertising
rental received. The future minimum guaranteed licence
fees or royalty fees are as follows:

(c)

AEERBELKEZHEHRWENRE
HEMFRY—Z1F  UAREHE
BEBEREREN - HETREEAR
AEE -

H At A& IE
FEEERET(IRELEREKR
HEREHETERY (I AFEEL
RE=REFRHERBERERER
klii)gt hEBEEZ(—A==)BR QA
(ThBEDFREENBLtzERAIRE
BNBEEMETESESNETE
ENBEHEEAMMNF-_E-——FE-F
—FHAEEE - BREZSRHTE - K
SEEARRMERRESHSFENE
EETEILANBHTERENE - K
REERBHFTEXEFNBWT ¢

—%FR
—FREEER

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

2010 2009
$/000 $000
Fi Fi
131,034 105,405
121,276 221,565
252,310 326,970
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29 Emp|oyee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees' relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the
local governments under which the Company's subsidiaries
are governed. Details of the schemes of the Group are as

29 EERKER

ARBREBEEE(RHUERTBEEIIRHIDA
ZIRABBCRRE GRG) T B 35 #O 8 B R L 5%
HRESHE([RESFE ] - BEES
BREBHUTRNTE B ULEEREE
2o REGESHE BTREEBHEAF
HEEREBEBBBASELOMHR - MEA
BRAWAH LR A20,0007T o sHEIHRT
BB ERTE

BERERZER  AEBE2EHHRE AR AMH
BARIMMTBRERNEERKSE -
AEEWEEFBLT

follows:
Contribution rate

Administrator Note Beneficiary i ES
BB A Hit & ZHA 2009
Shanghai Social Security Fund Management Center (i) Employees 22%
EETHERBREESEEDL ==
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Center (ii) Employees 20%
tEmHERBESEERHL BE&

Notes: BsE

(i) Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required
to make a confribution to the scheme at 22% and 8% respectively
of the employees’ relevant income.

(i) Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required

to make a contribution to the scheme at 20% and 8% of a pre-
defermined amount.
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li] REZAE - AEBEEEERDHIAED
HENEEBBUBA22% R 8% -

[il) REZAE - AEBEEER D HAED
HERTAFEE R 20% R 8% B 3K -



30 Material related party transactions

In addition to the fransactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has the

following related party transactions during the year

BRABERERA A

—E-BFEH

SO EREALHNEARRS

Management and administration fee EERITHE
income ['ON

Licence fee for conducting BUS-TV BLERER
business BIE

Licence and royalty fees paid for the MEEFEETRHRES
right to sell advertising space on BENUERNZAH
transit vehicle shelters R RERNE

Licence fee for the right to solicit REEEMERAIESL
advertising business at advertising EITEEEBNERN
space on transit vehicle interiors SR E

Licence fee for the right to solicit REEBRHE S IPESN
advertising business at advertising EITEHEBNENN
space on fransit vehicle exteriors HRTE

Rental expenses HEER

Management fee expenses EEBERX

Guaranteed advertising income REBEEBRA

Service fee paid for logistic function B BIRE IR &

Key management personnel TEEEAS
remuneration e

Interest income from associate

REBE RRHFZBA

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Fee income was earned for the provision of media sales
management and administrative services to a subsidiary of
Transport International Holdings Llimited (“TIH"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. There was no amount receivable by

the Group at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for conducting BUS-TV
advertising business on buses operated by KMB and fitted with the
BUS-TV broadcasting system. The amount payable by the Group at
the year end amounted to $5,805,000 (2009: $2,173,000).

Llicence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces
on cerfain fransit vehicle shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH.
The amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted fo
$332,000 (2009: $389,000).

BRAMBIHRE B DT RENR S K&
S REBRFABUATEBEALTHR
5
Income/(expenses)
WA (B)
Note 2009
gz $'000
T
(i) 13,339
(i) (22,068) (18,422)
(iii) (14,105) (13,788)
(iv) (9,300) (12,300)
(v) (55,430) (9,183)
(vi) (7,322) (4,479)
(vii) (16,738) (16,500)
(viii) 7,474 19,774
(ix) (490) (490)
(x) (6,755) (6,973)
- 3,376
Bzt

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BEARARKEAARTEERREBER
A IR 2 A (88 ) 6 BB 2 2
R E TR RTRBISRBEIKA -
RoB-FFER_FEAE+=A=+—
SRR Y 1IC e

BHBRERNEmMEENE L tBE+
BREEFGETELERESEB N
THEMBLRNER - RER - AEH
J& T #) R IE /5,805,000 L(Z 2 E N
F:2,173,0007T) °

FFREMNEZERHEHBHME DR
BEMAETREERREZTESLM
MEBER NER AEERNHOREAR
332,000 T(ZZZTAF : 389,0007T) °
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30 Material related party transactions (confinved)

Notes: (continued)

liv) licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting
advertising business in respect of the interior panels and other
interior spaces inside the compartments of buses operated by KMB.
The amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted to
$32,000 (2009: $Nil).

[v] Llicence fee was paid to subsidiaries of TIH for marketing,
displaying and maintaining advertisements at the exferior panels
of the bodies of buses operated by KMB and long Win Bus
Company Llimited (“long Win"). The amount receivable by the
Group at the year end amounted to $332,000 (2009: $Nil).

[vi) Rental expenses were paid fo a subsidiary of TIH for leasing
properties, audio and visual equipment, computer equipment and
software system, and furniture and fixtures. The amount payable
by the Group at the year end amounted to $15,000 (2009:
$3,785,000).

[vii) Management fee was paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited (formerly
known as JCDecaux Texon Limited] ("JCDecaux Cityscape’), a
fellow subsidiary of a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, for the provision of media sales agency services
in relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux
Cityscape at the year end amounted to $3,481,000 (2009:
$3,170,000).

[viii) The Group entered into a contract with JCDecaux Cityscape for
media sofes agency services provided to the Group in relation
to the bus shelters under the media sales business. The Group
shall be entitled to a guaranteed income calculated based on the
rates per panel and the number of bus shelter panels. JCDecaux
Cityscape shall pay any shorifall if the octuof)income derived
from the bus shelters is less than the guaranteed amount, and the
shortfall amounted to $7,474,000 (2009: $19,774,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The amount due to JCDecaux
Cityscape at the year end amounted to $848,000 (2009: amount
due from JCDecaux Cityscape of $497,000).

(ix) The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for the
logistic function provided to the Group in relation to the bus
shelters under the media sales business. The amount due fo
JCDecaux Cityscape at the year end amounted to $41,000
(2009: $41,000).

[x) Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as
follows:

MieE - (&)

[iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

[viii)

(i)

(x)
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31 Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At

31 December 2010, the Directors consider the

immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be KMB Resources Llimited and TIH respectively.
KMB Resources limited is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands while TIH is incorporated in Bermuda and listed in
Hong Kong. TIH produces financial statements available for
public use.

32 Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation

Fixed assefs are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The Company reviews
annually the useful life of an asset. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of fixed assets

Fixed assets are assessed at each balance sheet date
to identify indications that they may be impaired.
Such indications include physical damage of a
fixed asset and a decrease in the revenue derived
from a fixed asset. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the fixed asset is estimated.
The recoverable amount of a fixed asset is based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on reasonable assumptions that
represent management’s best estimate of the range of
economic benefits from the asset over its remaining
useful life.

B

AMBERERAH —E-BEFHR

31 EERERERLF

n=
AEENEET AR REEERA

T-—ZTF+_A=T—H EERR
& 7 5l

AKMB Resources Limited & & # - KMB
Resources Limited A 3 8 J& 2 B B s it 5K

ﬁ,
G-

32

& RN B R MR RN EE
HARBEVBRRABARALHE -

et R A E

ATRTEER[ANEZZRR

(a)

(b)

nE

BEEENEREMGAERFHNE
BOLFTENE - ARABFRAEEN
AERFEH  MBEBABLEERE
B AARKRUENAERAIEHELA

= o

EEEERE
FEERNEBEEERTRBEEEERS
RERS ZETREBEETEENE
EREREEEEMELNRERD
EREEALERETR @ NEEKG
FEEEENARLEHE - BEEEN
AREHEREREENE RFHE
ENEEEHZEENKEMNSFLR
EEFAMENEERE  LEBKTARE
REMETRERERA -
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements (confinued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of unlisted available-for-sale equity interest
In considering the impairment losses that might be
required for the Group's unlisted available-for-sale equity
interest carried at cost, the investment is reviewed at
each balance sheet date to defermine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the carrying amount of the unlisted
available-for-sale equity interest and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of
refurn for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Estimates of future cash flows
from such equity interest require significant judgement.
Impairment losses for equity interest carried at cost are
not reversed.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the debtors to make required payments. The
Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the
ageing of the accounts receivable balance and debtors’
credit-worthiness. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by management when assessing the
credit-worthiness of each individual customer and the
collectibility of each accounts receivable balance. Any
increase or decrease in impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts would affect the Group's results in future
years.

33 Non-adjusting post balance sheet events

After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 10.

P.124

(c)

(d)

32 Bt H R M o

LW A ERERRE

B SR BIZAA SRR HIF L A
HERBREFTERER  AEERNE
EEERBHZKE  UHEEEFE
EAXBENRERE - WEEEMNE R
B AEMREBBRERFELTAH
HEREREEEGEFARARRERE
(WITRFEEKR AZRALUSREE
MBTHELRENR)NZEET
BRBRENRIRERERNAZAH
B o 12 P 7R 51) B O PSR IR (B 85 18 A AT B
g o

FE W B 5% R (B

AEB LG RAE N EEFFHKAM
HH A BRESRZRBEENRER
B REBREE KRG SRORER
BERANERERENRGEIFT RAREDR
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
interprefations and one new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2010 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

BABERERAR —E-BEFHR

BMAEHEBMERBE-ZE—BF+=
A=tT—-—BLFEHRERNE
AR - HEARZRETEREK

=27
%4

BEAMBRRTEDN FERHTLE
EEGETRARE - BF+-A=+—
B AL 4 4 R SR 2T R R BB R — TR
Bl MARBRELBIRMLEET - 28
RIER RENTRERAEE ARG E
G

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 A Bz %
IR St MR

Revised HKAS 24, Related party disclosures
BAEETHNCEBERTERDE 2458 [ FHEA LHE ]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BBIBBREENEON  [£HT A/

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
“E-TH(EBUBREEN)NIE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

(EBEFERE 1 25RNIERT - [ AHEH ]

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group's results of operations and financial position.

1 January 2011
=E2——%—A—H

1 January 2013
—®2-=f-H-H

1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011
—E2-ZFtA-AR=E——F—-HA—H

1 January 2012
=F-=%-A—H

AEBEFEZFEIRENERARNY
& BAAL AEERR/RAZFETY
AEBNRERERVBERRNBREATE
B AT K o
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TEHBHRE

RESULTS ¥E

Turnover E 3

Gain on disposal of media HEREEE
assets Uy &

Other revenue and other net HAWA R E At
income W EE

Total revenue [LON £ -]

Profit from operations KRR

Finance costs BB%ER

Impairment loss of other non-  EfiERBERMEE
current financial assets FEEE

Gain on disposal of HENBAE
subsidiaries &

Gain on deemed disposal of BRIEHEBE AR
partial interest in associate BN E

Share of (loss)/profit of FEAL & A R
associate (F518),/ B

(Loss)/profit before BRBLA (8),/
taxation B

Income tax e B

(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(E#E) BF

Attributable to: LT
Equity shareholders of ARFE

the Company [

Non-controlling interests FERER

(Loss)/profit for the year  AFE(E#E) BT
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2010
HK$’000
BRI

325,231

31,213
356,444
61,114

(110,000)

(48,886)
(8,269)

A

(61,641)
4,486

(57,155)

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t-HLFE

2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BB T BB T BETT BET T
196,361 148,412 134,268 176,485
_ _ - 44,043
26,778 35,560 47,090 37,853
223,139 183,972 181,358 258,381
36,842 42,943 38,325 44,309
- (300) (1,706) (1,631)
(9,801) - - -
- - - 12,677

177 - 10,243 -
(4,544) 14,141 12,538 6,387
22,674 56,784 59,400 61,742
(4,454) (7,062) (2,003) (7,353)
18,220 49,722 57,397 54,389
14,016 42,615 49,620 30,781
4,204 7,107 7,777 23,608
18,220 49,722 57,397 54,389




HABIERERA T —E-ZEFR
At 31 December
Rt+=ZA=+-—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Fixed assets EE&EE 8,406 13,407 11,855 25,868 51,424
Media assets REEE - 372 778 1,122 1,408
Non-current prepayments FEREFEFIE 44,268 19,160 28,741 38,322 47,902
Interest in associate BN TR - — 256,926 232,623 176,839
Other non-current financial HitnFrRE &/
assets BE 219,140 231,664 — - -
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 4,067 3,802 6,227 9,560 8,449
Net current assets REEEFE 459,873 541,335 552,215 583,822 585,820
Total assets less current EELEERRE
liabilities =L 735,754 809,740 856,742 891,317 871,842
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE (86) (573) (2,295) (4,047) (8,537)
Net Assets BEERE 735,668 809,167 854,447 887,270 863,305
Capital and reserves RARGRES
Share capital B 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves EE 628,455 703,240 742,324 782,254 758,041
Total equity attributable to ARRBRR
equity shareholders of iy g
the Company AR 728,192 802,977 842,061 881,991 857,778
Non-controlling interests FERER 7,476 6,190 12,386 5,279 5,527
Total Equity AR 735,668 809,167 854,447 887,270 863,305
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